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Treasurer’s Report BE#RE

Report of the Treasurer to the Council on the Group’s
Financial Statements for the Financial Year from 1 July 2010
to 30 June 2011

Overview

The Institute continued to move steadily towards becoming an Education-
focused, multidisciplinary and research-strong institution. After the launching
of new UGC-funded non-Education degree programmes, the Institute was in
the process of launching new self-financed non-Education programmes, at both
undergraduate and postgraduate levels, to enrich the range of programmes
offered to the community.

Following the significant reduction in expenditure of last year (2009/10) as
compared with the previous year (2008/09) after the strengthening of various
cost controls, the expenditure in current year (2010/11) continued to decrease,
in spite of an increase in income. As a result, the Institute had turned the net
funding deficit of $62 million in 2009/10 to a net surplus of $82 million for
this year.

Academic Programmes and Student Numbers

There were five new progammes launched during the year. New UGC-funded
programmes were Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Language Studies and Bachelor
of Social Sciences (Honours) in Global and Environmental Studies. For the
self-financed programmes, they were Bachelor of Health Education (Honours),
International Executive Master of Arts in Educational Leadership and Change,
and Master of Arts in Music Education.

The total number of UGC-funded students in Full-Time Equivalent (“FTE")
terms studying at the Institute as at June 2011 increased by about 6.5% from
2009/10 to about 4,897 FTE students in 2010/11. The increase mainly came
from undergraduate programmes, of about 8.4%, but was slightly offset by a
decrease of about 1.6% in students at postgraduate level.

Among the non UGC-funded programmes, the Master of Education continued
to be the most popular programme with student enrolment of about 421 FTE
students. The Doctor of Education programme had 76 FTE students.
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Treasurer’s Report
AERE

UGC-funded Student Enrolment Statistics for the Year 2008/09, 2009/10 and 2010/11
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The HKIEd School of Continuing and Professional Education Limited (“SCPE”) ERYREERBETEHEERARAR ( [HESR
continued to offer the Project Yi Jin Programmes (“PYJ"), with about 1,013 FTE ¥HELhR] ) FREERNRERE  HH—FF

students, and the Pre-Associate Degree Foundation Certificate Programmes —T=%FRA2EHEENELE T —TF——
(“Pre-AD") and Associate Degree Programmes (“AD”) with about 526 FTE FHREIBLTEREERELISZLRE  HHOREZ
students in 2010/11. TREERZAGIZEMNEL -

Income and Expenditure WA B

The Group adopts the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) REBRNESEGTAASBRMAE B BHREAEL
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. For details ( TR ] ) o BREETR IS E BB O & 5HHGR
of the changes in accounting policy in relation to the new standards, please WENAED - FBREARGEAUBRERMEZ -

refer to Note 2 of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Institute.
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AE#RE

Income

There were net increases in the UGC Block Grants and Earmarked Grants of
about $42 million and $29 million respectively, as compared to 2009/10.
The increase in UGC Block Grants was mainly due to increased student
enrolment, whilst the increase in UGC Earmarked Grants was mainly because
of the receipt of Matching Grant during the period and the increase in research
projects. However, there was a decrease in donation of about $7 million.
With the growth in student numbers, Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees of
the Institute had increased by about $32 million. Regarding investment, the
Institute continued to invest in bank deposits with a diversity of banks, as the
global economy remained to be unstable. With the anticipation of appreciation
of the Renminbi, new deposits in Renminbi had been made over the year which
had contributed positively to the investment return for the year. The Institute
will continuously oversee its investment strategy and will make adjustments
where appropriate in response to the changing global economic conditions.

At the subsidiary level, the SCPE had a total income of about $70.3 million in
2010/11, which was $7.9 million lower than that of 2009/10 and was mainly
due to lower student intake.

Over the year, the Group’s non-UGC-funded income had steadily increased
by $12 million to about $293 million. The increase was mainly attributable
to increase in tuition fees from self-financed programmes and more tendered
training and consultancy contracts awarded by several government agencies.
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UGC-funded and Non-UGC-funded Income
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REHEFEPRIHNESEBHBRA
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Expenditure

The expenditure of the Group decreased by about $43 million as compared to
last year to a total of about $1,116 million. The expenditure at the Institute
reduced by about $33 million while the expenditure of its subsidiaries
decreased by about $10 million in 2010/11.

At the Institute, all of the expenditure categories had experienced decreases,
except for Other Academic Services which showed a small increase. The
decrease of about $14 million in Learning and Research was mainly due to the
reduction in staff costs following the retirement of academic staff members as
well as staff turnover. With regard to the small increase in Other Academic
Services, more resources were deployed to support the new academic
programmes and the preparation for the New Undergraduate Programme under
the 3+3+4 Academic Structure.

Under Institutional Support, a total saving of about $19 million was achieved.
The majority of the savings was contributed by a reduction in Premises and
Related Expenses of about $11 million, as a result of a decrease in repair and
maintenance works, utilities, cleaning and security expenses, after a review of
the service requirements done in April 2010.

At the subsidiary level, the SCPE had a total expenditure of about $61.9
million in 2010/11 which was $9.9 million lower than that of 2009/10. The
decrease was mainly due to decreased course fees paid to PYJ partners as a
result of the decreased number of PYJ students, and lower staff costs.
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2010/11
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Expenditure X i
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Superannuation Scheme

Membership of The Hong Kong Institute of Education Superannuation Scheme
(“Superannuation Scheme”) stood at 393 and the Superannuation Scheme
had total net assets of approximately $482 million as at 30 June 2011.

In addition, a total of 1,575 members of staff participated in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme with an approximate total fund balance of $82 million
as at 30 June 2011.

Outlook

Through prudent financial planning, the Institute has maintained a healthy
financial position, and is ready to meet the challenges of curriculum reform in
the next triennium. Contingency funding is built into the 2011/12 budget, to
empower management to make swift decisions to address any unforeseeable
risks in the preparation for the double cohort in 2012. Under the 3+3+4
Academic Structure, students of our core Bachelor of Education programme
will experience a new five-year undergraduate curriculum, whereas students
pursuing other Bachelor degree programmes will study for four years. This will
be an exciting journey for the Institute in providing our students with different
pathways, which enhance the breadth and depth in their learning to meet
the changing needs of contemporary society in the era of globalisation and

knowledge revolution.
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Seven years statistics of the Institute B X tEHKTEF

UGC-funded Student Numbers by Type of Sectors (in FTE)
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Dr Eric LI Ka-cheung, GBS, JP

Treasurer

The Council of The Hong Kong Institute of Education
14 October 2011
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Independent Auditor’'s Report &3 & &Ehik &

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of the Hong
Kong Institute of Education

We have audited the financial statements of The Hong Kong Institute of
Education (the “Institute”) set out on pages 10 to 61 which comprise the
Consolidated and Institute Balance Sheets as at 30 June 2011, and the
Consolidated and Institute Statements of Comprehensive Income, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Fund and the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Council’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Council of the Institute is responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and for such internal control as the Council determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 15 of The Hong Kong Institute of Education Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of the Hong
Kong Institute of Education (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Institute and the Group as at 30 June 2011 and

of their surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
HKFRSs.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

14 October 2011
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION FHE#E 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

Balance Sheet EE& &%

At 30 June 2011 —ZE——FXA=+H

Group &£ Institute 2Bz

2011 2010 2011 2010
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
iz BETT BT BET T BT
Non-current Assets FRBEE (restated) (restated)
(E71)) (E31)
Fixed assets BEEEE 4 2,007,199 2,046,119 2,002,833 2,041,531
Investments ®E 5 1 1 1 1
Held-to-maturity investments HEZIEEEE 7 23,746 41,447 23,746 41,447
Time deposits TE BT IR 8 23,488 80,495 23,488 80,495
2,054,434 2,168,062 2,050,068 2,163,474
Current Assets REEE
Held-to-maturity investments BEZEIMAKE 7 17,529 - 17,529 -
Accounts receivable, deposits JEMERIE - & &
and prepayments TEfIFRIA 9 54,595 39,116 54,160 38,178
Financial assets at fair value BAREEFABR
through profit or loss HERMEE 10 20,485 13,692 20,485 13,692
Time deposits TEHATF 8 300,299 518,028 300,299 517,941
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEED 11 697,985 384,908 654,364 346,076
1,090,893 955,744 1,046,837 915,887
Current Liabilities RENEE
Accounts payable and accruals FEBRIE K AT 7I8 12 159,759 158,944 155,473 151,697
Provision for employee benefits B B @ F# s 13 49,907 63,262 48,377 60,129
Borrowings B 14 2,870 4,243 2,870 4,243
Deferred income EIEUA 15 208,664 222,977 208,587 222,716
421,200 449,426 415,307 438,785
Net Current Assets REEEFE 669,693 506,318 631,530 477,102
Total Assets less Current Liabilities #EER KB ERE 2,724,127 2,674,380 2,681,598 2,640,576
Non-current Liabilities FREaE
Provision for employee benefits & B & E 13 8,327 8,655 8,157 8,591
8,327 8,655 8,157 8,591
Deferred Capital Funds BELEEAES 16 2,003,128 2,043,684 1,999,739 2,039,303
Net Assets EEFHE 712,672 622,041 673,702 592,092
Funds e
Restricted funds EERES 17 58,615 46,279 58,615 46,279
Other funds HinE S 18 654,057 575,762 615,087 545,813
Total Funds HEEHE 712,672 622,041 673,702 592,092

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 14 October 2011. WE KW =T ——F + B MU B S RIFEE R EHRE ©

Mr PANG Yiu-kai, SBS, JP EMB{ES4E  SREHES - APt Dr Eric LI Ka-cheung, GBS, JP ZEXR#E+  $L&HEF - ATt
Chairman of the Council E& X fE Treasurer &)J&
Prof Anthony CHEUNG Bing-leung, GBS, JP SRR - & XHMESE - AFa+ Ms Sarah WONG Man-yee E& 2L+
President %X & Director of Finance B &R &

The notes on pages 14 to 61 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 5 +027<+— B} it /8 A ir & B &R 9 — 5617 »

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011



THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION EA# B 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)

Statements of Comprehensive Income mEUWZER

For the year ended 30 June 2011 #&ZE

.

—=

FRA=ZTRHLFE

Income

Government subventions

Tuition, programmes and
other fees

Interest and net investment
income

Donations and benefactions

Auxiliary services

Other income

Expenditure

Learning and research
Instruction and research
Library
Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support
Management and general
Premises and related expenses
Student and general

education services

Surplus/(Deficit) from operations

Finance costs

Surplus/(Deficit) and total
comprehensive income
for the year before transfers

Transfers (from)/to:

Restricted funds
Other funds

Note
Bt
WA
B R 19
B5 . REMHEMUKE
20
FLE KR EE W as
21
BR&IEH 22
H 28 AR 75 23
HAbA
i 24
HE KR
BRI
B
FREER
E b 45 AR TS
HEZ®E
—MRATBR B
W& kAR
B R—RHE RS
EERR/(EFR)
U 32 %N 26
EHRAIAFEEES/(BE)
kEEkREE
HEB)ZE:
EEES 17
HEtmES 18

The notes on pages 14 to 61 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
EHENT—REHM B G S IR A —E D -

Group A&£MH Institute 2Bz
2011 2010 2011 2010
$’000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BETT BEFT BETT BT
768,755 685,511 738,351 656,558
322,587 299,449 260,059 227,841
15,651 16,147 15,595 16,111
20,170 27,228 19,483 26,917
25,818 24,746 31,254 29,885
10,711 8,066 15,338 12,531
1,163,692 1,061,147 1,080,080 969,843
628,991 645,590 556,544 564,018
42,458 45,346 42,458 45,346
62,152 66,323 62,152 66,323
45,161 44,647 45,161 44,647
65,415 71,853 65,051 71,322
172,845 184,099 171,151 182,176
55,912 57,775 55,826 57,724
1,072,934 1,115,633 998,343 1,031,556
90,758 (54,486) 81,737 (61,713)
(127) (157) (127) (157)
90,631 (54,643) 81,610 (61,870)
15,458 5,179 15,458 5,179
75,173 (59,822) 66,152 (67,049)
90,631 (54,643) 81,610 (61,870)

BEBHEER2010/201 1B ®/E



THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION FHE#E 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds #Z&aE&£&88R

For the year ended 30 June 2011 BZE=ZL——F A=+ HILFE

Restricted funds EEEE&

Endowment funds BAESE

The Joseph
Shun Hing Lau Luen Peter Ting Unspent
Matching ~ Cheung's  Education Hung Chang Lee Chair balance
Grant Family and Charity Lady lvy Wu Tin Ka Ping  Charitable  Professor of for
Funds Charity Fund Fund Scholarship  Li & Fung Foundation Trust  Health Studies research
e RX  RE#F  #$$FF Scholarships BRA 2 FESEER  Subtotal  KMHIE  Subotal
e  HEE: REEES #Ep FLHBs Ee® HEED  BRAUBE st B PE
$000 $'000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
BT BETL BETL BETr BETr BE T BETr A%Tr BETr A%TL BETR
Balance at 1 July 2009 R-BZAEtA—H
HEF - 3,103 5091 6,092 4,027 3,050 - - 21,363 20,811 42,174
Transfer from/(to) statement &8 H /() 2EKER - 13 75 (10 13 86 5,002 - 5179 5,179
of comprehensive income
Inter-fund transfer E S HEE 7,235%* - - - - - - - 7,235 (8,309) (1,074)
Balance at 30 June 2010 R=—Z-ZFXA=t+H
and at 1 July 2010 k=Z-TF+tH—H
HEF 7,235 3,116 5166 6,082 4,040 3,136 5,002 - 33,777 12,502 46,279
Transfer from/(to) statement & H /(£) 2EKEK 10,240 4 (84) 12 13 54 153 5,066 15,458 - 15,458
of comprehensive income
Inter-fund transfer EeHER - - - - - - - - - (3,122) (3,122)
Balance at 30 June 2011 R=Z——FxA=1+H
T 17,475 3,120 5,082 6,094 4,053 3,190 5,155 5,066 49,235 9,380 58,615

Other funds HEfitE &

General and Matching Other
development Grant operation Donations
reserve fund Funds reserves and
—MRHER EYpme HiaE benefactions Sub-total Total
B He i BRREE Nt ot
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT AT AT AT BETT BT T
Balance at 1 July 2009 R-ZEAELA—H
W7 301,228 83,912 185,343 64,027 634,510 676,684
Transfer from/(to) statement &8 A /() 2EKER (86,049) (7,176) 22,696 10,707 (59,822)  (54,643)
of comprehensive income
Inter-fund transfer HEeHEk 8,309 (7,235) - - 1,074
Balance at 30 June 2010 R-Z-ZFXA=1A
and at 1 July 2010 R-Z-Z5tA-ANER 223,488 69,501 208,039 74,734 575,762 622,041
Transfer from/(to) statement HER /() 2ERER 23,094 15,873 31,818 4,388 75,173 90,631
of comprehensive income
Inter-fund transfer EEmER 3,122 - - - 3,122
Balance at 30 June 2011 R=EB——FXA=tH
WEE 249,704 85,374 239,857 79,122 654,067 712,672

** Amount included $4,122,000 and $3,113,000 representing the matching grant funds raised from the Li & Fung Scholarships and the Tin Ka Ping Foundation, respectively.
BEOFERECHARAE S SHERNEEEHYEES - DRI REE4122 BITHEEK311.3 8T °

The notes on pages 14 to 61 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

F+mEN+ BB AR E BRI —# D -
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION EA# B 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement &#&&BE€RER

For the year ended 30 June 2011 BZE=ZL——F A=+ HIFE

Group AR&EMH

2011 2010
Note $’000 $'000
Bt BT BT
Cash flows from operating activities EETHNEESRE
Cash generated from / (used in) operations wEEL/ (FTA) Re 28(a) 38,315 (91,649)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities EEEBEL/ (FTA) BaFsE 38,315 (91,649)
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHNESRE
Purchase of fixed assets BEETEEE (49,845) (63,147)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets & BEEEMERIE 28(b) 37 -
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BER AR BB ABRDN
through profit or loss CREE (5,690) -
Purchase of held-to-maturity investments BAREREHARKE - (23,691)
Net descrease in time deposit TEBRTF R RE 274,822 192,716
Redemption of financial assets at fair value fEER A BE ABZER
through profit or loss CREE 42 42
Redemption of held-to-maturity investments BRFEZINHBEERE - 6,194
Interest received BEUAILE 8,707 19,514
Dividend received BB 389 305
Net cash generated from investing activities KB ESEER ST 228,462 131,933
Cash flows from financing activities BEZHNEESRE
Grants and donations received for RIGE E B EFTRE
additions of fixed assets HEhE RIBIK 47,800 59,779
Repayments of borrowings BEEX (1,500) (1,500)
Net cash generated from financing activities REEBFSIR S FRE 46,300 58,279
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEYHILNFE 313,077 98,563
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUMBEe REEEEY
beginning of the year 384,908 286,345
Cash and cash equivalents FRNESRRSEEY
at the end of the year 11 697,985 384,908

The notes on pages 14 to 61 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
B EN—EAH B A AR S BRI A — 5817 o
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION FHE#E 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

Notes to the Financial Statements B s ER Mz

2.2

General information

The objects of the Hong Kong Institute of Education (“Institute”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are to provide teacher education and facilities
In addition, the
Group also plans, establishes and manages non-profit making schools or

for research into and the development of education.
education institutions to advance the cause of education.

The registered address of its office is at 10 Lo Ping Road, Tai Po, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the
Council on 14 October 2011.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), a
collective term that includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued two revised HKFRSs, a number of amendments to
HKFRSs and two new Interpretations that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Institute. Of these, Hong Kong Interpretation 5,
Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that contains a Repayment on Demand Clause (“HK (Int)
5") is relevant to the Group’s financial statements. The adoption of new
Interpretation has resulted in a change in the presentation of the financial
statements. The non-current portion of borrowings has been reclassified
to current portion in these financial statements (see Note 2.3).

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2011
comprise the Institute and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”).

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION EA# B 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)

2.2

2.3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise stated in the
accounting policies set out below. The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period; or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Change in accounting policy

In November 2010 the HKICPA issued HK (Int) 5. This Interpretation is
effective immediately on issuance and sets out the conclusion reached
by the HKICPA that a term loan which contains a clause which gives the
lender the unconditional right to demand repayment at any time should
be classified as a current liability in accordance with paragraph 69(d)
of HKAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, irrespective of the
probability that the lender will invoke the clause without cause.

In order to comply with the requirements of HK (Int) 5, the Group has
changed its accounting policy on classification of term loans that contain
a repayment on demand clause. Under the new policy, term loans with
clauses which give the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any
time are classified as current liabilities in the balance sheet. Previously
such term loans were classified in accordance with the agreed repayment
schedule unless the Group had breached any of the loan covenants set
out in the agreement as of the reporting date or otherwise had reason
to believe that the lender would invoke its rights under the immediate
repayment clause within the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M AT

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION EE# 5 25z

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FTESHBEBE (&)
(Continued)

2.3 Change in accounting policy (Continued) 2.3 EFTBERHEE (&)

The new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively by re- L e BERCBMER - BNEHYIHR =
ZFELA-BOHNAES  TETRER
—E-EFANAZTHLEFENEEHFTER

EFDBRHE - ZBERHBELEZ BRI

presenting the opening balances at 1 July 2010, with consequential T—
reclassification adjustments to comparatives for the year ended 30 June
2010. The reclassification has no effect on reported surplus or deficit,

total income and expense or net assets for any period presented. FNE2MBHIESE - QU IFEE -
Effect of
adoption of HK
(Int) 5
As previously A
reported (BEARE) As restated
LRIHRE B HEMHTE RS
$'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT T BT T
Effect on the Group’s and the Institute’s HAEBRHGER_ZE—ZFA=1+HH
balance sheet as at 30 June 2010: BEABRNFE :
Borrowings - current portion &K - BER 1,373 2,870 4,243
Borrowings - non-current portion & 3K - JERNER 2,870 (2,870) -
2.4 Subsidiaries 24 HEBAF

B AR ANEEEFNEL - 1562
REBEAEIRE —EBNTBMLLBOR -
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing W tt?ﬁéE/E@UEPHX SHIZ o ERHEIERIFE
control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken HTLR  FEZEREAITEANEBERRE -
into account.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. Control exists when
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated financial statements MEA AR EhRESRGAEBEESKIEERTE

2.5

from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

All significant intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
losses arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried in the balance sheet of the Institute
at cost less any impairment losses.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and

losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (% 57 #8551

2.5

2.6

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses (see note 2.7).

Construction in progress represents buildings and other fixed assets under
construction and is stated at cost less any impairment losses (see note
2.7),and is not depreciated. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of fixed assets when completed and ready for use.

The cost of a fixed asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after fixed assets have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed asset, the expenditure

is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of fixed
asset is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income on the date of retirement or disposal.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over their expected useful lives
of 7 years or the unexpired period of the lease on a straight-line basis,
whichever is shorter. Depreciation of other fixed asset is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

50 Years

31to 5 Years

- Buildings
- Fixtures and equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

BB BE)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M AT

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION EE# 5 25z

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.7 Impairment of Assets
(a) Impairment of Receivables

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted where the effect
of discounting is material.

(b) Impairment of Fixed Assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to gather indications that fixed assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of Recoverable Amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

- Recognition of Impairment Losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised to
reduce the carrying amount of the asset or assets in the cash-
generating unit on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

- Reversals of Impairment Losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to the statement of
comprehensive income in the year in which the reversals are

recognised.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011
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2.8

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and held-to-maturity investments. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at the initial recognition

and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
statement of comprehensive income. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit or loss if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term
or if so designated by management. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if they are either held for trading or
are expected to be realised within 12 months of the balance sheet
date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value are
presented in the statement of comprehensive income in the
period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income as part of interest and net investment
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables representing time deposits are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the
Group provides money or services directly to a debtor with no
intention of trading the receivable. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets.
They are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
unless the discounting effect is insignificant, less provision for

impairment.

2.8

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2.8

2.9

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. If
there is objective evidence of an impairment loss on loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The amount of the loss is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If
the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities),
the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These
include the use of recent arm’s length transactions or reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same and discounted cash flow
analysis.

Accounts and other receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the terms of the receivables.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate, unless the discounting effect is
insignificant. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income. When a receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the statement
of comprehensive income.
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2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and their maturity dates are within
three months from the date of acquisition.

Accounts payable and accruals

Accounts payable and accruals are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, unless the discounting effect is insignificant. They are classified
as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of liability at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of directly attributable
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Borrowings are classified into current and
non-current liabilities. They are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

12 months after the balance sheet date.

Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for unutilised annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Superannuation scheme

The Institute has set up a superannuation scheme (the “Scheme”)
to provide its employees with benefits on retirement or termination
of employment.
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2

2.13

2.14

2.15

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Superannuation scheme (Continued)

Members of the Scheme contribute 5% of their basic monthly
salaries to the Scheme and benefits are paid to them on their
retirement or on leaving employment subject to certain conditions
as stipulated in the Trust Deed. Contributions to the Scheme are
expensed as incurred and other than those monthly contributions,
the Institute has no further obligation for the payment of

termination or retirement benefits of its employees.

(c) Mandatory provident fund scheme
The Group has established mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF scheme
Both the
Group and the employees are required to contribute 5% of the

are held in separate trustee-administered funds.

employees’ relevant income, subject to a maximum of $1,000
per employee per month. The Group’s contribution to the MPF
scheme is expensed as incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Recurrent subventions and grants are recognised as income over the
periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they are
intended to compensate, on a systematic basis, based on the assumption
that the conditions of the recurrent subventions can be met.
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2.15

2.16

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Government subventions and grants, which are earmarked for specific
purposes, are initially recognised as deferred income when there is a
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attached to it and that the subventions will be received. They are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a systematic
basis to match with the related costs for which they are intended to be

used.

Government subventions and grants, and donations spent on capital
expenditure are recorded as deferred capital funds and are released and
credited to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets when the assets
are put in use, to the extent of the related depreciation expense for that
period.

Grants from government agencies for courses are recognised when
services are provided and complied with the conditions attached to it.
They are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the
duration of the courses related.

Tuition programmes and other fees, and auxiliary services income are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the courses or
services to which they relate.

Donations in cash and cash equivalents or other investment instruments
for general purposes are recognised as income at fair values when it
is probable that they will be received, which is generally upon their
receipt.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs thatare directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.
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2.16

2.17

2.18

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or complete.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased asset. Leased incentives are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be
related to the Group if:

(a) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise significant influence
over the Group in making financial and operating policy decisions, or
has joint control over the Group;

(b) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(c) the party is a subsidiary, an associate of the Group or a joint venture
in which the Group is a partner;

(d) the party is a member of key management personnel of the Group, or
a close family member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such individuals;

(e) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (a) or is an
entity under the control, joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

(f) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the benefit of
employees of the Group or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(Continued)
2.18 Related parties (Continued) 2.18
Close family members of an individual are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in their
dealings with the entity.
3 Financial risk and fund risk management 3
3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1

The Group'’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign

exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s

overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the

Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(0

Foreign exchange risk

The Group conducts its operation in Hong Kong with its
transactions denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group
derives its operation income mainly in Hong Kong dollars.
The Group’s foreign currency exposures arise mainly from
and are substantially limited to, the exchange rate movements
between Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars and
Renminbi because most of the financial assets held under
treasury investments and cash balances which are subjected
to foreign exchange movements are denominated in United
States dollars and Renminbi. Since Hong Kong dollars are
pegged to United States dollars under the Linked Exchange
Rate System, the foreign exchange exposure between United
States dollars and Hong Kong dollars is therefore limited. On
the other hand, foreign exchange rate between Renminbi and
Hong Kong dollars is not pegged, but there is anticipation of
the progressive appreciation of Renminbi against the United
State dollars under the policy of Renminbi internationalisation
of the People’s Republic of China Government, therefore, the
risk of such exposure is also limited.

As at 30 June 2011, the financial assets held under treasury
investment are significant to the Group. However, as such
foreign exchange exposure does not have a significant risk to
the Group, no sensitivity analysis is performed.
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3 Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued) 3 BREREESRMEE (E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1  H¥ERBREZE (8)
(a) Market risk (Continued) () THERRE (8)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) SMNERER (4)
The following table details the Group’s and the Institute’s TRV AEE RGN EE B
exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising EW IR T ENITeEE A8
from recognised assets or liabilittes denominated in a UWERREESBEMEANE
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to RS o BHELER - BEREAELR
which they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of BB o

the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars.

Group A&&HE

United States Australian Canadian Pounds
Dollars Renminbi Dollars Dollars Sterling
E AR SEIT meXT e
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fir Fit Fir Fir Fr
2011 —B——f
Held-to-maturity investments BEZEHAKE 41,275 - - - -
Time deposits TE BT 48,012 40,420 = = -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 107,005 259,961 621 36 374
Accounts payable and accruals  FESRRFK X EETIE B (2,011) (269) (7) (389) (164)
Net exposure arising from EREEMABEEEN
recognised assets and liabilities & AdE H5E 194,281 300,112 614 (353) 210
United States Australian Canadian Pounds
Dollars Renminbi Dollars Dollars Sterling
E AR SEIT meXT S
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
2010 —z-®x
Held-to-maturity investments HEZEHAKE 41,447 - - - -
Time deposits TE BRTEAK 364,976 - 751 1,132 2,551
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEED 86,723 - 1,614 864 1,966
Accounts payable and accruals  FESBRFX X EFTIEE (278) (217) (315) (23) (30)
Net exposure arising from B R AEM A FEE SR
recognised assets and liabilities [ AIEF58 492,868 (217) 2,050 1,973 4,487
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3 Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(0

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

3
3.1

Notes to the Financial Statements
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BHEBREESEAREE (H)

BREAMEE (&)
() MRk (8)
() SNERBR ()

Institute #p%

2011

Held-to-maturity investments
Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts payable and accruals

Net exposure arising from
recognised assets and liabilities

2010

Held-to-maturity investments
Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts payable and accruals

Net exposure arising from
recognised assets and liabilities

United States Australian Canadian Pounds
Dollars Renminbi Dollars Dollars Sterling
E AEHE BT mExT wgE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T+ T+ T+t T T+
—E——F
BEZIHARKRE 41,275 - - - -
TE BATF R 48,012 40,420 - - -
Re kB EEY 107,005 259,961 621 36 374
FERTER R R FERTIE B (2,011) (269) (7) (389) (164)
EHER A EMN A EE R
[E\ B A P F R 194,281 300,112 614 (353) 210
United States Australian Canadian Pounds
Dollars Renminbi Dollars Dollars Sterling
Ei AEHE BT mEXT mgE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
—E-BF
REZIEAKE 41,447 - - - -
EHTFER 364,976 - 751 1,132 2,551
Re kB2 EEY 86,723 - 1,612 494 1,966
ERTBRR K FERTIE B (278) (217) (315) (23) (30)
EREREEM A EEEN
[R A FRE 492,868 (217) 2,048 1,603 4,487
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3 Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises mainly from the interest-
bearing financial assets held under treasury investments,
which are reviewed on a regular basis in accordance with the
Group’s policies and guidelines.

Based on the simulations performed at 30 June 2011, if
interest rates on interest-bearing bank deposits had been
50 basis point higher or 25 basis point lower with all other
variables held constant, surplus for the year would have been
$573K higher (Deficit of 2010: $406K lower) or $12K lower
(Deficit of 2010: $10K higher) respectively, as a result of
higher/lower interest income on bank deposits.

The cash flow interest rate risk is considered low as the Group
has no significant interest-bearing financial liabilities.

The Group’s long-term borrowings are non-interest bearing
and although it exposes the Group to fair value interest rate
risk, this does not have adverse impact to the Group. The
management believes that the Group’s fair value interest rate
risk is minimal and no sensitivity analysis is performed.

(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. The Group is not exposed to commodity
price risk. To manage its equity price risk, the portfolio is
diversified in accordance with the limits set by the Group.
Given the insignificant amount of the portfolio of listed equity
investments held by the Group, the management believes
that the Group’s equity price risk is minimal.

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its deposits and
cash at banks, accounts receivable and investment balances with
financial institutions. There are procedures in place to mitigate
the risk and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
closely by the management on an ongoing basis.
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3
3.1

Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable in respect of tuition fees are receivable by
due dates preset every year according to the academic calendar.
The Group has a policy of withholding the issue of academic
documents to students to enhance the quality of accounts
receivable. The credit risk in investment balances with financial
institutions and deposits and cash at banks are limited because
the counterparties are mainly banks and financial institutions
with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. For banks and financial institutions, only independently
rated parties with a minimum Moody'’s rating of “A” are accepted.
The Institute has no significant concentration of credit risk and the
risk exposure is diversified over a large number of counterparties.
The Institute has policies that limit the amount of credit exposure
to any single financial institution.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements regularly to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in both short
and longer terms.

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available to meet
liabilities as they fall due, and it results from mismatch of assets
and liabilities. The Group performs regular projected cash flow
analysis to manage liquidity risk to ensure that all liabilities due
and known funding requirements could be met. Prudent liquidity
management also includes maintaining adequate credit facilities
in the Group’s approved banks.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Institute’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity
dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balance for accounts payable and
accruals due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as

the impact of discounting is not significant.
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AeENmER  YREEEEAER
SR - AREEHRITRERERA D
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TR EANEERE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

3

3.1

Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued) 3

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

At 30 June 2011

Borrowings
Accounts payable and accruals
Other provisions

At 30 June 2010

Borrowings
Accounts payable and accruals
Other provisions

At 30 June 2011

Borrowings
Accounts payable and accruals
Other provisions

At 30 June 2010

Borrowings
Accounts payable and accruals
Other provisions

R=2——$5xA

+H

JEA BR N et 3R IR
HA B

R-—Z—ZFXA=1+H
BX
FEABR X K AT R IE

H b

R-Z2——FXA=1H
B

JE A BR R e FE R RIR
HAt B

R-Z-—2FXA=1H
E%

& A R 7R e B R RIR
HAt
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BHEBEESRBREE (H)

MREREE (&)
(R) "EBESRR (&

Upto 3 monthsto 1 year to Over
3 months 1 year 2 years 2 years Total
“EARKT ZEAZ—%F —FEF ZFENUE FekE)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT T BET T BT T BT T
- 3,000 - - 3,000
75,077 2,020 100 500 77,697
- - 11,358 - 11,358
75,077 5,020 11,458 500 92,055
- 4,500 - - 4,500
72,452 1,872 976 100 75,400
- - - 10,712 10,712
72,452 6,372 976 10,812 90,612

Institute #5z

Upto 3 months to 1 year to Over
3 months 1 year 2 years 2 years Total
=@EARNUT =ZEAZE—%F —FEZF ZHEME Pk
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ok BT BT BT BT
- 3,000 - - 3,000
72,198 2,020 100 500 74,818
- - 11,358 - 11,358
72,198 5,020 11,458 500 89,176
- 4,500 - - 4,500
66,286 1,814 946 100 69,146
- - - 10,712 10,712
66,286 6,314 946 10,812 84,358
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION EA# B 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)

3 Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued) 3 EEREESRMEE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 EB¥RBEZ (&)
(d) Fair values (T) 2ArEE

The following table presents the carrying value of financial TREVRARBEFENERIAL

instruments measured at fair value at the balance sheet date HEEHAMEREE - EFES R CEBY

across the three-level of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS BWmERER) E79% - [T HE:#

7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each Bl AT =-EAREBEER W&

financial instrument categorised in its entirety based on the lowest HepTAATEEREHEEARE

level of input that is significant to that fair value measurement. BEEEEREENHEERBABERS

The levels are defined as follows: B RERONEENT

- Level 1 (highest level): fair value measured using quoted - BEf (RaER)  FHAER
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial SR TAMEREMENRE (RE
instruments. AE) RetERAAEE -

- Level 2: fair value measured using quoted prices in active - FBCEH - FREUSRIALE
markets for similar financial instruments, or using valuation BhisnmERmERN (E2F
techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or EEMMABYEESEEUNTE
indirectly based on observable market data. ROMSEEAENE) KtEQHR

- Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation B1E -
techniques in which any significant input is not based on - FZEAR (REER) - KAMKE
observable market data. il (FrAEZrE A B IEAR]

BROMISEBRARER) KAERQ
nEE-
2011 =B——F 2010 —B—%%F
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
E—EHR FER kL] E—EH E_EHR k)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT BETT BT BETT BETT
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value RARBEFAERER
through profit or loss: TRIEE
- Investment in listed unit trust - BN EFERE 19,118 - 19,118 12,505 - 12,505
- Investment in unlisted unit trust -FEEMEBEMNEFRRE - 1,367 1,367 - 1,187 1,187
19,118 1,367 20,485 12,505 1,187 13,692

During the year, there were no significant transfers between AENTESHTAEAABES—H

instruments in Level 1 and Level 2. E_ER BEHERER -

BEBHEER2010/201 1B ®/E
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION FHE#E 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

3.3

Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued)

Fund risk management

The Institute is a government subvented education institution established
under the laws of HKSAR, which objects are to provide studies and training
in teacher education and facilities for research into and the development
of education. The Institute is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements, except as stated in note 17, and its activities are
mainly funded by government grants and tuition fees, the spending of
which is governed by the University Grants Committee (“UGC”) Notes on
Procedures and other grant conditions. The Institute’s activities are also

funded by donations and funds generated from self-financing activities.

The various Restricted and Other Funds represent the unspent balance
of such grants, income, donations and other specific purpose funds.
These funds are managed according to the relevant grant and funding
conditions, where applicable, and the Institute’s investment and financial
management guidelines and procedures with the view of meeting the
objects of the Institute.

None of the Institute’s subsidiaries are subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements and their capital management policies are governed
by their own financial management guidelines and procedures with
the view of safeguarding the subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going

concern.

Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provision of receivables and payables
are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Group for similar financial instruments, unless the effect

of discounting will be immaterial.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (% 57 #8551

4 Fixed assets

BB BE)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R AR YA

Group <&M

Leasehold Fixtures and Construction

Cost:
At 1 July 2009
Additions
Disposals

At 30 June 2010

At 1 July 2010
Additions
Transfer

Disposals

At 30 June 2011

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 July 2009

Charge for the year
Written back on disposal
At 30 June 2010

At 1 July 2010

Charge for the year

Written back on disposal

At 30 June 2011

Net book value:

At 30 June 2011

At 30 June 2010

B
R_EZAF+LA—H
b
BE
RZE—ZFA=+H

RZZE——FA=T1H

RiHrE -
—TTNFtA—AH
REEE
BEERERE
R=F—ZTFA=1H
RNZE—ZF+HA—H
NEEAE
BB %D

RZE—FA=+H

BRIEFHE :

RZE——FA=+H

R=B-FFAA=1A

Buildings improvements  equipment  in Progress Total
BF HEWMEEE RBERR fERTR “agE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT BT BT BB T
2,381,715 81,660 262,554 - 2,725,929
4,177 29,077 28,616 - 61,870
= (38) (8,720) = (8,758)
2,385,892 110,699 282,450 - 2,779,041
2,385,892 110,699 282,450 - 2,779,041
100 9,817 13,858 26,993 50,768

- 18,5675 - (18,575) =
(356) (2,165) (13,133) = (15,654)
2,385,636 136,926 283,175 8418 2,814,155
415,280 44,143 198,778 - 658,201
47,688 12,086 23,697 - 83,471

= (38) (8,712) = (8,750)

462,968 56,191 213,763 - 732,922
462,968 56,191 213,763 - 732,922
47,719 15,624 25,990 - 89,333
(1) (2,165) (13,133) = (15,299)
510,686 69,650 226,620 - 806,956
1,874,950 67,276 56,555 8,418 2,007,199
1,922,924 54,508 68,687 - 2,046,119

BEBHEER2010/201 1B ®/E
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

4  Fixed assets (Continued) 4 BE&E (&)

Institute Bz

Leasehold Fixtures and Construction

Buildings improvements  equipment  in Progress Total
BF HEWMERE KERELE EETRR FEEE]
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT BT BT BT
Cost: RS :

At 1 July 2009 RZZTTNhF+LA—H 2,377,951 78,652 255,680 - 2,712,283
Additions HE 4,177 28,875 27,514 - 60,566
Disposals RE - - (8,408) - (8,408)

At 30 June 2010 RZZE—TFA=1H 2,382,128 107,527 274,786 - 2,764,441

At 1 July 2010 R-—Z—ZFtH—H 2,382,128 107,527 274,786 - 2,764,441
Additions HE 100 9,546 13,471 26,993 50,110
Transfer G - 18,575 - (18,575) -
Disposals RE (356) - (12,965) - (13,321)

At 30 June 2011 R-_ZT—FA=+AH 2,381,872 135,648 275,292 8,418 2,801,230

Accumulated depreciation: ZHE

At 1 July 2009 R-TZNFtA—A 414,603 41,659 192,432 - 648,694

Charge for the year REEHE 47,615 11,925 23,084 = 82,624

Written back on disposal EEEER - - (8,408) - (8,408)

At 30 June 2010 R-ZE—ZTFA=1+AH 462,218 53,584 207,108 - 722,910

At 1 July 2010 KZZE—ZEF+H—H 462,218 53,584 207,108 - 722,910

Charge for the year NEEHE 47,646 15,415 25,392 - 88,453

Written back on disposal B EER (1) - (12,965) - (12,966)

At 30 June 2011 RZZE——FA=1+H 509,863 68,999 219,535 - 798,397

Net book value: BRIENEE :
At 30 June 2011 RZZE—FA=+H 1,872,009 66,649 55,757 8,418 2,002,833
At 30 June 2010 R-_ZT—ZTFA=+AH 1,919,910 53,943 67,678 - 2,041,531

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011
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B SRR M
THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION EA# B 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)
5  Investments 5 &7
Group and Institute 4~ @EMKpz
2011 2010
$’000 $'000
BETT BT T
Investments in subsidiaries and HPT N A R

institutional entities HEREERNIRE 1 1

Note a: Investments in subsidiaries

The Institute has a 100% (2010: 100%) interest, without investment cost, in the HKIEd Schools Limited which was incorporated in Hong Kong on 14
December 1998 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to plan, establish and manage schools.

The Institute has a 100% (2010: 100%) interest, without investment cost, in the HKIEd School of Continuing and Professional Education Limited
(“HKIEd SCPE”) which was incorporated in Hong Kong on 28 June 2006 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to set up,
maintain and operate, in conjunction with the Institute for the promotion and advancement of professional, technical and continuing education, foster
and provide courses leading to awards as well as courses of general interest, and where appropriate, provide learning opportunities in or outside Hong
Kong. The HKIEd SCPE has assumed the responsibilities and mission of the Division of Continuing Professional Education of the HKIEd since 1 July
2006.

The results of these subsidiaries are accounted for in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
Note b: Investments in institutional entities

The Institute holds 1 share of $500 (2010: 1 share of $500), representing 12.5% of the share capital of the Joint Universities Computer Centre Limited,
a company providing computer services for the UGC-funded Higher Educational Institutions in Hong Kong.

The Institute has a 12.5% (2010: 12.5%) interest, without investment cost, in Joint University Programmes Admissions System (“JUPAS”) which was
incorporated on 18 September 1990 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to administer and operate the joint admissions
system for and on behalf of each member of the JUPAS.

The Institute holds a 25% (2010: 25%) interest, without investment cost, in EdExchange Limited which was incorporated in Hong Kong on 21 March
2005 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to promote education and to provide financial assistance and subsidies for the
purposes of education and training to educational charities, scholarships, fellowships and bursaries in Hong Kong and elsewhere.

The Institute has a 12.5% (2010: 12.5%) interest, without investment cost, in Joint Quality Review Committee Limited (“JQRC”) which was incorporated
on 26 August 2005 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to provide and implement a peer review framework for the quality
assurance of self-financing, associate-degree programmes in the continuing education units of the members in the JQRC.

Given the nature of these institutional entities and the insignificance of the investment costs, the Institute did not account for them in its financial records.
In addition, taking into consideration that there are no significant operations in these institutional entities and they are immaterial to the Group, their
results are not accounted for in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The financial statements of these institutional entities are not audited by
KPMG.

K« B A FRRE
HE BB BHE B ERERARZ100% (—F—FF : 100%) #z (REREAKE) o WRFR—ANNF+=A+HAEEEEMAK LA —FERBRAG] - &
) nEe  BUREEER -
HE M5B EEHE BB R U EERFRAR ( [HEHES/] ) 2100% (ZF—FF : 100%) #as (REREKE) « MWRAR-_FENFAAZTNAES
BRMA LR —FERARAG - Al AN2EHGAREEREE  (BEFE - RITHFENE - HENEMREEZTUR —REGARIE - I (FEEBAT) 52
HEBTGIINRERE - FEAEBRE —TERNFLA—ALE  BEE THRETHRHEEEHE BB AN E D
WEIE R AR RATI AR EE G RRA -

Wiz : ERERENRE
HE 5 E —REEBHE00T (ZF—FF | —[REMEEHE007T) ZABHAE TP LOARAFRD - HERZRFRAZ12.5%  ZAFEBIEREMRE THEAS
B EEEEHERRK -
HEETFFEABBE WAL ( [HR4ERE] ) 12.6% (—F—FF : 12.5%) i (REREKE) - WEBR—NANFTFAATNAEMKLB—HERERAF - A2
KRB EBAGEL S E L EG AW EE -
HBtsBHMS58925% (ZF—FF : 26%) #as (REREMAE) - WEER —TTAF=A - +—AEEEAMRA LR —FERERAR  AENRIGEHEFEX I
RHABSCETM LD - UREBNAMM T M EZEBRBIEH IS RELHHESL -

HEHEHREERNERS ([ZRE] ) 12.6% (ZF—FF : 12.5%) Bz (RERAKTE) - WBER _FFRF AT NAZMKZR—HERERAA - £F
#I2 /R B BN B s BRSSPI B B B RIS 4 B RIBIR AT TRIE IR AT #IE -

BRI E BB TR AR ATA - HETIER U F R B AR FEGERE - Mo BRI S HERENBEANLEFNHFEEZETK  HACFIREERE
CAREBEREGEMFERRA © W E R BEEN I FREIG AL IR BB & i E AT -

BEBHEER2010/201 1B ®/E
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6

Financial instruments by category

Group A%

Financial assets as per balance
sheets as at 30 June 2011
Held-to-maturity investments
Time deposits
Accounts receivable
Security deposits
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets as per balance
sheets as at 30 June 2010
Held-to-maturity investments
Time deposits
Accounts receivable
Security deposits
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

SREE RE-T——F
AA=t+HRNEESER
FEZZHARE
RERE
BAS EER ABER

EREE
ReMASEEY

SREE RE-T—2F
AA=t+tHNEEAER
FEZZHARE
EHfFR
REEE
R BERF AR

ERMEE
B MRASEEY

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011

Note
Kt

6

TRIT A (ZEH)

Financial Assets at

fair value through Held-to-

Loans and profit or loss maturity
receivables BRREBERA investments Total
BN R BN EREE FAEZIHRRE HE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BETT BHTT BT BETT
- - 41,275 41,275
323,787 - - 323,787
43,667 - - 43,667
7,212 - - 7,212
- 20,485 - 20,485
697,985 - - 697,985
1,072,651 20,485 41,275 1,134,411
- - 41,447 41,447
598,523 = = 598,523
32,758 - - 32,758
3,465 - - 3,465
- 13,692 - 13,692
384,908 - - 384,908
1,019,654 13,692 41,447 1,074,793
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6

Financial instruments by category (Continued)

Institute #Ez

Financial assets as per balance
sheets as at 30 June 2011
Held-to-maturity investments
Time deposits
Accounts receivable

Accounts due from subsidaries

Security deposits

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets as per balance
sheets as at 30 June 2010
Held-to-maturity investments
Time deposits
Accounts receivable

Accounts due from subsidaries

Security deposits

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities as
per balance sheets
Other financial liabilities
Accounts payable, accruals
and other deposits
Borrowings

Note
Hifat

ERMEE RE-T——F
AA=THMEEAER
REZZHMERE 7
TE HITF R 8
FEUBR TR 9
&P 8 A R RO 3R IR 9
REEE 9

RAR(EBEF ABRZS
SRAEE 10

RekRASEEY 11

TREE  RE-T—ZF
AA=THHEERER
RAEZIHARE
TEHITFR
Rl UNCIEE
RERS
BAAEERAREDN

ERIEE 10
Re kRS EEYD 11

© © © 0\

Note
FtaE
SHEAE REEE
1€
HiveFhaE
FEATBR AR FE 5T RIE 12
B 14

6

Financial Assets at

Notes to the Financial Statements
B KM

TRT A (ZER) (&)

fair value through Held-to-

Loans and profit or loss maturity
receivables BRREBERA investments Total
BERRRER BROSRMEE KEZIHARE #aE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BETFT BT BETT BETT
- - 41,275 41,275
323,787 - - 323,787
39,474 - - 39,474
3,853 - - 3,853
7,073 - - 7,073
- 20,485 - 20,485
654,364 - - 654,364
1,028,551 20,485 41,275 1,090,311
- - 41,447 41,447
598,436 = - 598,436
29,027 - - 29,027
2,953 - - 2,953
3,154 - - 3,154
- 13,692 - 13,692
346,076 - - 346,076
979,646 13,692 41,447 1,034,785

Group A&E Institute
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $’000 $'000
BT BT BT T BT
77,697 75,400 74,818 69,146
2,870 4,243 2,870 4,243
80,567 79,643 77,688 73,389

BEBHEER2010/201 1B ®/E
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION FHE#E 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

7  Held-to-maturity investments 7 BAEERIMARE
Group and Institute Z<&@E Pz
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
BETT BT
Listed, at amortised cost T HREEAR
- listed outside Hong Kong - EEBUINET 15,640 15,665
Unlisted, at amortised cost JEETH - IR 25,635 25,782
41,275 41,447
Less: Current portion classified B REE S BERREEE
as current assets (17,529) -
23,746 41,447
8  Time deposits 8  EHFR
Group &£ Institute 2Bz
2011 2010 2011 2010
$’000 $'000 $’'000 $'000
BETT BT BET T BT T
Time deposits with original JREIHA B HEA31E A sk
maturity over 3 months LA_EBYE HRTE R
or above
Current portion mENELD
- Unpledged - REHESR 291,299 507,528 291,299 507,441
- Pledged - BEEEIR 9,000 10,500 9,000 10,500
300,299 518,028 300,299 517,941
Non-current portion IERENE D 23,488 80,495 23,488 80,495
323,787 598,523 323,787 598,436

The effective interest rate on time deposits with original maturity over
3 months or above was 1.58% (2010: 0.97%). These deposits have a
weighted average maturity of 228 days (2010: 251 days).

The pledged time deposit of $3.0 million (2010: $4.5 million) and
$6.0 million (2010: $6.0 million) are used respectively as securities for
a loan from the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”)
Government disclosed in Note 14 and for the Group’s bank overdrafts
facilities which have not been utilised as at year end (2010: $Nil).

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION EA# B 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)

9  Accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments 9  EBUERN - BEREMNRE
Group A% H Institute iz
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BETT BT T BT
Accounts receivable (Note a) FEURBRZR (HEH) 43,667 32,758 39,474 29,027
Less: Provision for impairment B R E R
(Note b) (HiF2) (1,953) (1,579) (1,788) (1,266)
41,714 31,179 37,686 27,761
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W Bt B 1 R TR IR
(Note c) (H1ZEF) - - 3,853 2,953
Security deposits REBES 7,212 3,465 7,073 3,154
Maximum exposure to credit risk FERR N &S AE 48,926 34,644 48,612 33,868
Prepayments TERTRIE 5,669 4,472 5,548 4,310
54,595 39,116 54,160 38,178
(a) Accounts receivable () BB
As at 30 June 2011, the Group’s and the Institute’s accounts E-ZT——F X A=1+0 A&EEEH
receivable of $3,286K (2010: $2,456K) and $2,116K (2010: B2 0 O 80 M 30 4 B ) FE W BE 209 B
$1,407K) were past due but not impaired respectively. These AEEE308 6B I (ZE—TF B
mainly relate to a number of students and the HKSAR Government 245 687T) REK21168T (—E—
for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis T HME140.7ETT) o HEHIET
of accounts receivable is as follows: BE RSB ENRENZHE
4 REBEREBUT 1SRRI
AT
Group A% H Institute iz
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BETT BETT BETT
Not past due SRy EA 38,428 28,723 35,570 26,354
Past due by: B
0 - 3 months 0—31EA 3,093 2,319 1,923 1,270
3 - 6 months 3—6f&@A 116 62 116 62
6 — 12 months 6—12 @A 49 32 49 32
Over 12 months A 121E A 28 43 28 43
41,714 31,179 37,686 27,761

BEBHEER2010/201 1B ®/E
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION FHE#E 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

9  Accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments 9 BUERN - RERBARE (R)

(Continued)

(b) Provision for impairment of accounts receivable (2) REEERRERERE
As at 30 June 2011, except for the Group’s bad debts written off RZE——FRXA=1TH BTAE
directly to the statement of comprehensive income of $Nil (2010: EEERAZERERMENEREE
$4K) and written back directly to the statement of comprehensive Tt (ZZT—Z4F : B%4,0007T)
income of $10K (2010: $45K), the Group’s and the Institute’s UEEZEB2ENRROSHEEE
accounts receivable of $1,953K (2010: $1,579K) and of $1,788K 10,0000 (ZZE—=4F : F#45,000
(2010: $1,266K) were impaired respectively and full provision 70 N AEERHEREERELE
has been made accordingly. These mainly relate to a number EH 2 BB ENRKETR D B AEE
of students for whom there are unexpected difficult economic 19538 (ZZE—ZF : B¥157.98
situations. The ageing of these receivables is as follows: JC) MAE#178.88 L (T —TF ¢

BH126.68TT)  WEFRIBESR
SRHBIAHAIME BRI S L - It
FRNGRABRE AT T -

Group A5%£E Institute 2Bz

2011 2010 2011 2010

$'000 $'000 $’000 $'000

BT T BT BT T BT T

Past due by: [l

0 — 3 months 0—31{EA 604 139 604 139

3 - 6 months 3—61EA 522 604 522 604

6 — 12 months 6— 12 @A 716 800 551 492
Over 12 months BB 121E A 111 36 111 31
1,953 1,579 1,788 1,266

Movements on the provision for impariment of accounts receivable FEUBR KA R BB EE T

are as follows:

Group &£ Institute 2Bz

2011 2010 2011 2010

$’000 $'000 $’'000 $'000

BT T BT BET T BT

Balance at 1 July RERA—BRNET 1,579 2,431 1,266 1,286

Provision for impairment BB RE 1,953 1,579 1,788 1,266
Receivables written off during F N SEEBGRIER

the year as uncollectible e Bl FIE (1,476) (2,110) (1,163) (965)

Unused amounts reversed RAFIERE (103) (321) (103) (321)

Balance at 30 June RANA=+HNER 1,953 1,579 1,788 1,266

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)

9

Accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments
(Continued)

(b)

Provision for impairment of accounts receivable (Continued)

The Group has recognised a loss of $1,953K (2010: $1,579K) for
the impairment of its accounts receivable during the year ended
30 June 2011. The loss has been mainly included in office
expenses under “Instruction and research”, “Other academic
services”, “Management and general” and “Students and
general education services” in the statement of comprehensive
income, to the extent of $470K (2010: $468K), $302K (2010:
$292K), $1,073K (2010: $792K) and $108K (2010: $27K)
respectively.

The unused impairment provision of $103K (2010: $321K) was
reversed and credited to office expenses under “Instruction
and research”, “Other academic services”, “Management and
general” and “Student and general education services” in the
statement of comprehensive income, to the extent of $Nil (2010:
Nil), $23K (2010: $7K), $80K (2010: $268K), $Nil (2010: $46K)
respectively.

Amounts due from subsidiaries

The amounts due are unsecured and repayable within 30 days.
Except for the amount of $8K (2010: $64K) due from a subsidiary
which is interest-free, the remaining balance is interest bearing
at monthly savings account interest rate quoted by bank, and is
charged on the overdue balance.

The effective interest rate as at year end is nil (2010: nil) per

annum.

9

Notes to the Financial Statements
B KM

FEWRRR - RERFENRE ()

(2)

FEUR R B RIERHE (48)
HE-_ZT——F X XA=-THILFEER
FEUBR SRR B 1BIE 195,38 T (=
T—2F  BE15798T) o WIEES
BEERAZEKREERN [HERMH
%) - [HMBMRE] - 87K
RER| LR [2ER—BHE R
HEORAEFRIA - BEHRIRBE
470,00070(=Z—Z4F : B%468,000
JT) -~ B#302,000T (ZE—TH
7 #5292,0007T) - A#1,073,0007T

ZT—TF : F¥T792,000) &
&#108,0000C (ZZT—ZF : B
27,0007T) °

KRB AR EREHE103,0007T (=
T—ZTF  BHE321,0000T) DL
B WEFAZEAREER [HER
Ml - [HAMZ2MRE] - [—R1T
BERERE] Lk 24 k—RUER
Bl R AERIN - BES BIAEE
T (Z2—TF BT B
#23,000 (ZZ—Z4F : B¥7,000
Jo) -~ AH80,0000T (ZT—TF B
#268,0007T) MEBZT (ZE—F
4 B#546,0007T) ©

R W Y 8 2 R SRR

I I8 JE UK R SR R AR 30 B B
B BRTEE—HRBRRNRIAE
t8,0007T (ZZ—Z4F : #%64,000
JT) RRBIN - HMFIRRRITE AR
BFRAEGERN S - B AERHER
P -

REEHBNEBRNEREF% (=
—ZF  0%)

BEBHEER2010/201 1B ®/E
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B RS R R M AT

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION EE# 5 25z

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

10 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

10

BARBEFABENEREE

Group and Institute <5 @M

Investment in listed unit trust in BA L MEMNEFIRE

Hong Kong, at fair value (RAREE)
Investment in unlisted unit trust, JE EMEBAEFEIRE
at fair value (RAREE)

Note :

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

Wi -

recorded in “interest and net investment income” in the statement of comprehensive

income (Note 21).

11 Cash and cash equivalents

11

20,485

2011 2010
$'000 $000
BT BETFT
19,118 12,505
1,367 1,187
13,692

BRAREEFARRSHEEN AL BEZHEDHEK
wRPER [FIERFRERA] (Wit21) -

RERBEEEY

Group A£E Institute 2Bz

RITRFHERS
KEHIRITER

Cash at banks and in hand
Short-term bank deposits

2011 2010 2011 2010
$’000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT BT BT
114,695 81,196 78,279 50,027
583,290 303,712 576,085 296,049
697,985 384,908 654,364 346,076

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 0.47% (2010:

0.35%). These deposits have a weighted average maturity of 29 days

(2010: 37 days).

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)

12  Accounts payable and accruals

12

Notes to the Financial Statements
B KM

P BRI B RR TR

Group A£E Institute 2Bz

2011 2010 2011 2010

$’000 $'000 $’000 $'000

BT BT BETT BT T

Accounts payable (Note b) ERBRR (HfE2) 47,823 36,848 45,885 34,177
Accruals FERTEUE 27,832 36,289 26,891 32,706
Other deposits itz e 2,042 2,263 2,042 2,263
77,697 75,400 74,818 69,146

Other provisions HAith e 11,358 10,712 11,358 10,712
Receipts in advance TERIA 70,704 72,832 69,297 71,839
159,759 158,944 155,473 151,697

(a) The carrying amounts of accounts payable and accruals approximates () BEZZ—FRZZT-ZFA=THIER
their fair values for both financial years ended 30 June 2011 and 2010. B REE, ERNERRERFIENKRE SR

BEENEERS -

(b) Included in accounts payable as at 30 June 2011, is a provision of () RIE——FXNAZTHEHNEMNERBED
approximately $Nil (2010: $3.1 million) of subvention repayable to the BETT (Z2—ZF  BE3108T) K
HKSAR Government. % EREENESFRBUTNMHEE

13  Provision for employee benefits 13 EERANRE

Group &5E Institute Bz

2011 2010 2011 2010
$’000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT BT T BT T

Staff costs: BB :
Unutilised annual leave RAEEHFRE 32,689 33,783 31,887 32,612
Gratuities KM < 25,306 37,942 24,612 36,064
Long service payment RERG® 239 192 35 44
58,234 71917 56,534 68,720

Payable: FEER

Within 1 year —FR 49,907 63,262 48,377 60,129
After 1 year —F1% 8,327 8,655 8,157 8,591
58,234 71917 56,534 68,720

BEBHEER2010/201 1B ®/E
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION FHE#E 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

. =k
14 Borrowings 14 EX
Group and Institute <& BBz
2011 2010
$’000 $'000
BT T BT
Term loan, secured and classified FEARWTIERE B BT HER (restated)
as current liabilities E27))
2,870 4,243
Note:  The HKSAR Government provided a loan of $15.0 million to the Institute to meet Wat . BBREBATIEE MR EER1,5008 TEHX - KUX
start-up costs of self-financing accredited post-secondary programmes (e.g. 118 B BEHR A R _FR2(BIEIE + 21852 &
Associate Degree Programmes). The loan is non-interest bearing, repayable in o ZERTEHE - AR —FEMFENAED +FEF
equal annual instalments over a period of 10 years from June 2004 and is secured SREEE - WA RITEHERI008T(—F—F
by the Institute’s bank deposits of $3.0 million (2010: $4.5 million) disclosed in F : EMAS0E TT)IE /R - LOHTE8FTHEEE
Note 8.
The carrying amounts are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on FEEERIEE S R E U B TS E S FE3.0%(=
the then effective market borrowing rate of 3.0% (2010: 3.0%) and all denominated T4 3.0%)HHEHE - 2BLETHERD -
in Hong Kong dollars.
The fair value of borrowings approximates their carrying value for financial years HE—T——FR_F—ZTFA=THIHNBEFE F
ended 30 June 2011 and 2010. REIA 7 BEEE AR EERE ©

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011
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B SRR M
THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION EA# B 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)
15 Deferred income 15 EZEWRA
Group =% Institute Bz
2011 2010 2011 2010
$’'000 $'000 $’000 $'000
BETT BT T BETT BT
Balance at 1 July RER—BMERE 222,977 219,598 222,716 217,719
Subventions, grants and B/ ERHEEE
donations received/receivable BRI B 722,826 687,113 706,067 670,674
Recognised during the year REFZ AR (689,339) (623,955) (672,407) (606,809)
Transferred to deferred [ E 1SN
capital funds (Note 16) (MiE16) (47,800) (59,779) (47,789) (58,868)
Balance at 30 June RAB=THNERF 208,664 222,977 208,587 222,716
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $’000 $'000
BETT BT BT T BT T
Balance representing: ERBIE
Institute bz
Earmarked grants FERE B
- Research - ifi3e 10,273 13,422 10,273 13,422
- Immersion - TR 28,260 29,753 28,260 29,753
- Home Financing Scheme - BETEBIETE 86,259 86,204 86,259 86,204
- Housing-related benefits other -EEFEMAEZEE
than Home Financing Scheme 1B FFERE > 24,195 21,180 24,195 21,180
- Development of New Undergraduate - & [==p1| 24|
Program under 3+3+4 MREBHEE
academic structure 476 1,979 476 1,979
- New initiative to 3+3+4 - [Z=m] BHIEFEE 7,606 12,515 7,606 12,515
- Others - Efth 22,468 28,986 22,468 28,986
Capital grants and Alterations, EEB R REGE -« M
Additions, Repairs and S RN E TR RER 5
Improvements Block Allocation 19,704 19,035 19,704 19,035
Grants from government agencies BT HE RS SR 9,346 9,642 9,346 9,642
208,587 222,716 208,587 222,716
Subsidiary Bt A =
Earmarked grants HETE R
- Others - Eftb 77 261 - -
208,664 222977 208,587 222,716

EEERERSETES ([ZEL] ) EAR
funding of $3,117K for the Group’s project “Research Effectiveness rEEN [EHEE  BEESERENE - &
of Early Intervention for Chinese Kindergarteners at Risk for Specific B BSOSl HEM [EHEE
Learning Difficulties” and $669K for the project “READ & WRITE: A BEGESXETE - BBVPREESER
Jockey Club Learning Support Network Publishing a Standardized Bl ] THE D RRHESEEIN . 7TE LB
66.987C c EAFE - AEEEHAIMREEREE
WRIZESHBTEB1138 T (ZT—ZF
PEHET0.88 ) MEK1668T (ZE—TF
52238 IT)  RPHEHREIIBRIELA -

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”) approved

Assessment Battery for Identification of Secondary Students with Dyslexia
in Hong Kong”. During the year, the Group received grants from the
Trust of $1,130K (2010: $708K) and $166K (2010: $223K) for these two
projects respectively and the unutilised balance is included in deferred
income.

BEBHEER2010/201 1B ®/E
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B RS R R M AT

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION FHE#E 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

16 Deferred capital funds

Balance at 1 July

Representing:
Buildings
Leasehold improvements
Fixtures and equipment

Transfer from deferred income

(Note 15)

Buildings

Construction in Progress
Leasehold improvements
Fixtures and equipment

Release to income or
expenditure
Buildings
Leasehold improvements
Fixtures and equipment

Balance at 30 June
Buildings
Construction in Progress
Leasehold improvements
Fixtures and equipment

REtA—BH&ER

18

F
HEMFEER
EERE M

g

EERERA (FiEE 15)

BT

FERETHE
HEMHEER
EERE M

BEAMI R

BF
REMRER
ElE S E Mk

RAA=THNER
BT
FERETHE
HEMHEER
EERE MR

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011

16

ELEERES

Group A58 Institute 2z

2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000
BETT BT BETT BETT
2,043,684 2,066,522 2,039,893 2,063,185
1,922,923 1,966,436 1,919,910 1,963,350
53,942 36,993 53,942 36,993
66,819 63,093 66,041 62,842
2,043,684 2,066,522 2,039,893 2,063,185
100 4,175 100 4,175

8,418 - 8,418 -
28,121 28,874 28,121 28,874
11,161 26,730 11,150 25,819
47,800 59,779 47,789 58,868
(48,074) (47,688) (48,001) (47,615)
(15,415) (11,925) (15,415) (11,925)
(24,867) (23,004) (24,527) (22,620)
(88,356) (82,617) (87,943) (82,160)
1,874,949 1,922,923 1,872,009 1,919,910
8,418 - 8,418 -
66,648 53,942 66,648 53,942
53,113 66,819 52,664 66,041
2,003,128 2,043,684 1,999,739 2,039,893




THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION EA# B 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)

17 Restricted funds

Institute

Balance at 1 July 2009

Transfer from statement of
comprehensive income

Inter-fund transfer (Note 18)

Balance at 30 June 2010
and at 1 July 2010

Transfer from statement of
comprehensive income

Inter-fund transfer (Note 18)

Balance at 30 June 2011

R-ZEZEAFLA-ANER
Ba2HEKEEK

EHER (K 18)
R-ZB—ZFXA=THRK

—E-EFELA-HNEF
#BE KRR

EoEER (M 18)
R-B——EXRA=THNEF

17 EEEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R AR YA

Unspent

Endowment balance for
funds research Total
BARES KRBT k=)
$'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT T BT

(Note a) (Note b)

(H1zEF) (Hiz%2,)

21,363 20,811 42,174
5179 - 5,179
7,235 (8,309) (1,074)

33,777 12,502 46,279

15,458 - 15,458

- (3,122) (3,122)

49,235 9,380 58,615

(a) “Endowment funds” represent grants and donations on which the
Institute would, according to the wishes of the donors, keep the principal
intact and only use income generated from the fund to support activities
of designated purposes.

(b) “Unspent balance for research” represents the total remaining balances
of funds designated for different research projects.

D) [BAES ] BHRERBEENERRE
SRS  WERMESAEENRANRI
FHEE RERE BB -

(2) (R ] B ERTRFRER A
BEOESRIRAEE -

BEBHEER2010/201 1B ®/E



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M AT

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION FHE#E 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

18 Other funds 18 HihE S

Institute #Px

General and Other
development Matching operation Donations
reserve fund Grant Funds reserves and
—MRERE RHEBE HAth  benefactions Total
HEES A% LiEREE BRRE 4R%E
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT BT IT BETIT BT T BETIT
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d)
(H1zE5F) (Ftat2) (H1aE) (H1ET)
Balance at 1 July 2009 R-ZBZNFLtA—BHNER 301,228 83,912 162,777 63,871 611,788
Transfer (to)/from statement of & (A)/ B2 FEkzER
comprehensive income (86,049) (7,176) 15,459 10,717 (67,049)
Inter-fund transfer (Note 17) E MR (A 17) 8,309 (7,235) - - 1,074
Balance at 30 June 2010 and R=-T—Z&AA=1+HE
at 1 July 2010 —E-ZFLtA-HWERE 223,488 69,501 178,236 74,588 545,813
Transfer (to)/from statement of ~ # (A)/ B2 EKREX
comprehensive income 23,094 15,873 22,712 4,473 66,152
Inter-fund transfer (Note 17) ESHER (K 17) 3,122 - - = 3,122
Balance at 30 June 2011 R-B——FXA=THNER 249,704 85,374 200,948 79,061 615,087
(a) “General and development reserve fund” (“the Reserves”) represents the () [—wkEREFHEES] ( [FEE2] ) B

B RABESER AIEBEESK - BF
BRESHRAZNETER) - RHEESHNE
FH CREAH=%F) EnEnsts (TEE

unspent UGC funds (i.e. the recurrent grants other than earmarked grants
for specified purpose) of the Institute. The balance of the Reserves at the
end of the funding period (usually a triennium) that can be carried over to

the next funding period is limited to @ maximum of 20% of the approved
recurrent grants for the Institute other than the earmarked grants for
specific purposes for that funding period. Should the balance of the
Reserves at the end of the funding period exceed the ceiling allowed, the
excess amount is refundable to the UGC.

Matching Grant Funds are funds granted by the HKSAR Government on a
matching basis for qualified private donations raised by the Institute. The
matching grants can be used for supporting activities within the ambit of
UGC-recurrent grants.

“Other operation reserves” are funds other than those described in (a),

(b) or (d) and are to be used to finance the Group’s activities in general.

“Donations and benefactions” represent the reserves of non-refundable
donations from the donors.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION EA# B 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)

19 Government subventions 19 BUFEE
Group #%£E Institute iz
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $’000 $'000
BT T BETT BETT BET T
Subventions from UGC BEERN
Block / Recurrent grants BE | EE R 495,356 453,786 495,356 453,786
Earmarked grants & TE B 103,683 74,273 103,683 74,273
Home Financing Scheme EFTE BT & 10,030 16,011 10,030 16,011
Matching grant Be BN S B 34,738 - 34,738 -
Replacement Town Centre BEMEOR 10,075 9,758 10,075 9,758
Earmarked for pension top-up fEEMmMRNS 4,678 5,126 4,678 5,126
Earmarked language FETE RBUILIR ekl
immersion programmes 9,646 12,956 9,646 12,956
Research projects H7IEE 9,700 4,394 9,700 4,394
Housing-related benefits FEEMEAEIZEE
other than Home EFEES
Financing Scheme 1,070 1,427 1,070 1,427
Restructuring and BERHBIEES
collaboration fund - - BliEA
academic restructure - 152 - 152
Restructuring and EERBIEES
collaboration fund — —4YIEH
Project 4Y 1,391 1,763 1,391 1,763
Development of the New ==/ 25ITH
Undergraduate Program under FIABAERERR
3+3+4 academic structure 8,225 15,042 8,225 15,042
Promoting outcome-based HRE AR B AR 5
approaches 3,514 4,455 3,514 4,455
Upgrading of Language RIABEHENEE RN
Teaching & Learning Facilities 2,807 308 2,807 308
New Initiatives to 3+3+4 (== | SHEFEE 4,909 2,428 4,909 2,428
2010-12 Development of New ==P9] BHnERmR
Undergraduate Programmes s8I/ 2010-12 £ &
under “3+3+4” Enhance FIABAEREE R
Communication 1,170 - 1,170 -
Knowledge Transfer A% 1,615 453 1,615 453
Other earmarked grants HAh3EE B 115 - 115 -
Government rent and R 1R & 2= fin
rates refund 7,654 7,129 7,654 7,129
Capital grants and Alterations, EERBNAGE © g -
Additions, Repairs and HIEREE TR EARE
Improvements Block Allocation 54,005 53,613 54,005 53,613
660,698 588,801 660,698 588,801
Grants from government BT RR
agencies 108,057 96,710 77,653 67,757
768,755 685,511 738,351 656,558

ERBHEBRR2010/201 1AM E
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION FHE#E 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

20 Tuition, programmes and other fees 20

28 RENHMBKE

Group A5£E Institute 2Bz

2011 2010 2011 2010
$’000 $'000 $’000 $'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
UGC - funded programmes HEEEHRE
Tuition fee 25 181,497 167,281 181,497 167,281
Programmes and other fees 2R E AU 9,263 5,736 9,263 5,736
Non UGC - funded R EREBRE
programmes
Tuition fee 25 114,858 108,037 55,481 39,829
Programmes and other fees 2R E AU 16,969 18,395 13,818 14,995
322,587 299,449 260,059 227,841
21 Interest and net investment income 21 FERFREWE

Group #~5%E Institute iz

2011 2010 2011 2010
$’000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT BT T BT T
Unrealised gain from financial RERAABETTA
assets at fair value through BEafemEEN
profit or loss AEIRWES 1,139 1,173 1,139 1,173
Realised gain from financial RERAABETA
assets at fair value through BalEmEEDN
profit or loss EERKE=E 6 6 6 6
Dividend gain A% B ES 389 305 389 305
Interest income F2UA 8,426 12,767 8,370 12,731
Foreign exchange gain V& 5 Wz 5,691 1,896 5,691 1,896
15,651 16,147 15,595 16,111
22 Donations and benefactions 22  BRRIEB
Group A5£E Institute Bz
2011 2010 2011 2010
$’000 $'000 $’000 $'000
BETT BT T BETT BT T
Capital projects HiEBEE 1,898 1,907 1,898 1,907
Scholarships, prizes and bursaries REG  BEFPHES 5,119 7,456 5,119 7,416
Donations for academic activities HEMDEBN B 13,153 17,865 12,466 17,594
20,170 27,228 19,483 26,917
Note:  The HKSAR Government has launched the Fifth Matching Scheme for UGC-funded it BBHEBTEHLRA S AR E DB HE

institutions to match the donations secured by them. Donations pledged and paid
to the Institute between 1 June 2010 and 15 March 2011 are eligible for such
matching grants.
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B SRR M
THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION EA# B 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)
22 Donations and benefactions (Continued) 22 #HEREER (&)
As at 30 June 2011, the related income or expenditure incurred for the R-FT——FRA=1TH FRERHELY
matched donations eligible for matching grants are shown below : FEE M BB AR FENT -
Group and Institute Z<& @z
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
fid 947 B & B3R AR $T1H Bh & 1R i
$'000 $'000
BT BT T
Balance at 1 July REtA—BN&ER 69,501 77,800
Income WA
Matching grants AR ¥ B 2 B 34,715 =
Matched donations LRE - 14,333
Miscellaneous income HEBA 9 -
Interest and investment income F B RIEE WA 1,160 1,283
35,884 15,616
Expenditure 2]
Academic strength and BITEREZRERE
niche area development 3,800 2,189
Teaching and research B R
enhancement 1,586 2,030
Scholarships, prizes and RBES REMPLE
bursaries 2,198 862
Internationalisation and BlFR b B BB A X HRR &
student exchange activities 2,146 6
Student development BARE) - 351
Others Hh 41 228
9,771 5,666
Classified as restricted fund SEREES 10,240 -

Balance at 30 June RAB=+HNERF 85,374 87,750

BEBHEER2010/201 1B ®/E
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION FHE#E 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

22 Donations and benefactions (Continued) 22  BFRKRIBE (HF)
As at 30 June 2010, the related income or expenditure incurred for the RZZE-ZEXA=1TH  FaERPHELY
matched donations eligible for matching grants are shown below : B S BRAHBRRA RS HF BN T
Group and Institute Z<& @Az
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
Ao 947 B © B3R Bt i Bh & 1R
$'000 $'000
BT T T
Balance at 1 July REA—BWER 83,912 64,453
Income KA
Matching grants AR ¥ B 2 K = -
Matched donations LEEEN - 20,382
Interest and investment income FERIEE WA 1,250 1,295
1,250 21,677
Expenditure X H
Academic strength and B RERRRE
niche area development 6,198 2,035
Teaching and research HERRER
enhancement 1,245 1,489
Scholarships, prizes and REG - REMPHES
bursaries 828 3,391
Internationalisation and BUFR (L BB A X IRTR &)
student exchange activities - 1,248
Student development BAEE) 71 167
Others Hith 84 -
8,426 8,330
Transfer to restricted fund EARTEESD 7,235 -
Balance at 30 June RARB=THHERF 69,501 77,800
23  Auxiliary services 23 MIEARIE
Group A& H Institute
2011 2010 2011 2010
$’000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT BETT T
Student hostels BEES 21,190 20,791 21,191 20,804
Rental income LA 2,108 1,117 7,543 6,243
Rental contribution from staff BEMSHGK 2,201 2,498 2,201 2,498
Others HAt 319 340 319 340
25,818 24,746 31,254 29,885
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24

Expenditure

24

< H

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R AR YA

2011 - Group £&H

Learning and research
Instruction and research
Library
Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support

Management and general

Premises and related expenses

Student and general education
services

Total expenditure 2011

HERHR
HE R
EBE
AR E IR
H{tb AT AR

HEXE

—BATRRER
B RIARRX
B KRB RS

B —EXHAR

Employee
benefits Operating

expenses expenses Depreciation 2011 Total

EEREAFAXZ BIERI ST e 2011 #a%8
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

BT BT BT BT

(Note 25)

(Bif7t25)

531,011 94,505 3,475 628,991
25,176 16,694 588 42,458
29,452 22,143 10,557 62,152
38,272 6,766 123 45,161

623,911 140,108 14,743 778,762

(Note 24a)

(FfaE24a)
53,276 12,029 110 65,415
30,571 68,647 73,627 172,845
25,466 29,593 853 55,912
109,313 110,269 74,590 294,172
733,224 250,377 89,333 1,072,934

2010 - Group #&£H

Learning and research
Instruction and research
Library
Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support

Management and general

Premises and related expenses

Student and general education
services

Total expenditure 2010

HERWRE
HE KR
EES
R E IR
H At BT AR

HEXE

—RITBREHE
& kAR
BAER—RHE R

2R -EEXHAR

Employee
benefits Operating

expenses expenses Depreciation 2010 Total

BB HERX e 2010 4258
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

BT BT T BT BT T

(Note 25)

(Biz#25)

546,999 95,508 3,083 645,590
26,885 17,695 766 45,346
31,075 26,014 9,234 66,323
38,358 6,125 164 44,647

643,317 145,342 13,247 801,906

(Note 24a)

(HtaE24a)
57,802 13,923 128 71,853
30,223 84,232 69,644 184,099
26,704 30,619 452 57,775
114,729 128,774 70,224 313,727
758,046 274,116 83,471 1,115,633
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24 Expenditure (Continued) 24 i ()
2011 - Institute iz
Employee
benefits Operating
expenses expenses Depreciation 2011 Total
BRI B e 2011 #4858
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT T BT T BT
(Note 25)
(B7t25)
Learning and research BERWME
Instruction and research HE LT 481,422 72,527 2,595 556,544
Library EES 25,176 16,694 588 42,458
Central computing facilities P REBGR 29,452 22,143 10,557 62,152
Other academic services E b B4 AR TS 38,272 6,766 123 45,161
574,322 118,130 13,863 706,315
Institutional support BBELE (Note 24a)
(HtiE24a)
Management and general —RATB R ERE 53,276 11,665 110 65,051
Premises and related expenses W& kBB 30,571 66,953 73,627 171,151
Student and general education B4R —RHE R
services 25,466 29,507 853 55,826
109,313 108,125 74,590 292,028
Total expenditure 2011 —E-—FLHER 683,635 226,255 88,453 998,343

2010 - Institute 2Bz

Employee
benefits Operating
expenses expenses Depreciation 2010 Total
EBREMAX EIEMY e 2010 #%58
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT T BT T BT BETIT
(Note 25)
(Biz#25)
Learning and research BERHARE
Instruction and research HERIFE 495,157 66,625 2,236 564,018
Library EES 26,885 17,695 766 45,346
Central computing facilities RSB AR e 31,075 26,014 9,234 66,323
Other academic services Hith Bi7 AR 38,358 6,125 164 44,647
591,475 116,459 12,400 720,334
Institutional support BELE (Note 24a)
(Ftz+24a)
Management and general —RAITB R ERE 57,802 13,392 128 71,322
Premises and related expenses & RIEFR X 30,223 82,309 69,644 182,176
Student and general education B K —RHE RS
services 26,704 30,568 452 57,724
114,729 126,269 70,224 311,222
Total expenditure 2010 —E-THELTHHASE 706,204 242,728 82,624 1,031,556
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION EA# B 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)
24 Expenditure (Continued) 24 X (&)
(a) Analysis of operating expenses - Institutional support () ZEFRIZW - #BLE
Group A5£E Institute 2Bz
2011 2010 2011 2010
$’000 $'000 $’000 $'000
BET T BB BT T BET T
Management and general —RITERER
Office expenses PWAERT 9,103 9,393 8,959 9,188
Professional and legal fees BEREEEA 989 602 984 484
General insurance — iRk 1,054 836 1,016 800
Auditor’s remuneration AN & 738 703 561 531
Minor equipment and NURERRREE
system implementation 145 2,389 145 2,389
12,029 13,923 11,665 13,392
Premises and related expenses REREEAER
Utilities N3] 18,809 19,845 18,352 19,363
Repair and maintenance and WS - (RE /N T 52
minor works 12,288 21,689 12,023 21,409
Premises rental EFe 10,635 11,227 9,818 10,223
Government rent and rates 7= R R oAl 7,714 7,181 7,714 7,181
Cleaning services BRIRTS 5,032 6,528 4,948 6,441
Security services IRZ2 AR TS 7,434 9,125 7,388 9,080
Office expenses WAERT 4,984 5,262 4,984 5,262
Telecommunications BAEA 594 726 569 701
Minor equipment and NURERRZRE
system implementation 398 1,757 398 1,757
Property insurance YRR 402 516 402 516
Notional rental for staff quarters BIFENEEEE 357 376 357 376
68,647 84,232 66,953 82,309
Student and general B4R — BB RS
education services
Student hostels expenses BAFEEL L 10,321 11,181 10,321 11,181
Health care centre BB 2,940 2,737 2,940 2,737
Scholarship, bursaries and 1EEL « BIEEF
prizes to students BLERS 6,823 7,426 6,737 7,375
Extra-curricular activities PRINEED 7,224 5,888 7,224 5,388
Office expenses WAERT 2,129 3,254 2,129 3,254
Others HAh 156 133 156 133
29,593 30,619 29,507 30,568
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25 Employee benefits expenses 25 REERAMFEX
Group ~%E Institute 5%
2011 2010 2011 2010
$’000 $'000 $’000 $'000
BETT BEF T BT T BETF T
Wages and salaries T & MM 612,296 633,508 565,779 585,205
Unutilised annual leave REHFR 2,903 2,861 3,272 2,802
Gratuities FopETe 25,904 25,905 24,696 24,550
Contributions to MPF scheme Bt ok 10,613 10,364 9,225 9,055
Contributions to superannuation RAEDFEIAHR
scheme 40,585 42,016 40,585 42,016
Provision for long service payment REARGREE 104 (68) 48 (68)
Housing benefits B EEF| 21,271 26,094 21,271 26,094
Other staff related benefits HfibfE SRR A 19,548 17,366 18,759 16,550
733,224 758,046 683,635 706,204
(a) Higher paid staff () ©B%FES
Total annual equivalent emoluments irrespective of the funding SHEENEHEELETE (TEHA
sources for the higher paid staff are analysed as follows: SHRAA]) AT ¢
Group and Institute Z<E B
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
BT BT T
Basic salaries, housing allowances, K% - EE28
other allowances and benefits HAh2RE R EY =
in kind 30,713 24,560
The above emoluments fell within the following bands: e s BRI ST T
Number of staff EE&H
2011 2010
Emoluments bands: <47
$1,800,001 - $1,950,000 75#1,800,0017T - ##1,950,0007T 3 3
$1,950,001 - $2,100,000 751,950,001 7T - #5%2,100,0007T 4 4
$2,100,001 - $2,250,000 752,100,0017T - 7#%2,250,0007T 1 1
$2,250,001 - $2,400,000 75152,250,0017T - 7#5%2,400,0007T 4 1
$2,400,001 - $2,550,000 75#£2,400,0017T - #%2,550,0007T, 1 -
$3,000,001 - $3,150,000 7513,000,0017T - #5%3,150,0007T - 1
$3,150,000 - $3,300,000 753,150,001 7T - 7% 3,300,0007T - 1
$3,300,001 - $3,450,000 753,300,0017T - ##3,450,0007T 1 -
14 11

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011



THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION EA# B 2k
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25 Employee benefits expenses (Continued) 25

(b) Key management personnel compensation

The key management of the Group and the Institute refers to
those senior management having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group and
the Institute and their compensations are analysed as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
B KM

BEEANFEX (A)

() IEEBASHH
REERHBGENEEERABEAREN
MEERE - EEMEHIAEE KR
ABHNEREEAR - AIRHIONT
Ll

Group and Institute 25 ERHER

T& - HBaness

Salaries, wages and allowances

Employer’s contribution to EEMRIKRS HR
retirement schemes
Provision for gratuities and AN TR S B R
unutilised annual leave
26 Finance cost 26

ERNERHS
TREENERTE

Effective interest on borrowings
Effective interest on financial assets

27 Taxation 27

The Institute and its subsidiaries are exempted from payment of Hong
Kong Profits Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

2011 2010
$’'000 $'000
BT BT
17,482 15,938
750 293
1,675 1,645
19,907 17,876
AR A
Group and Institute 28 ERHER
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
BT BETT
127 167
- (10)
127 157
B

RIE (BTG EDI) 881K - #br kX HE AR
DERRHRBENEN -
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28 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement 28 mERESRBERME
(a) Cash generated from / (used in) operations () @&EE4L/ (A mie
2011 2010
Note $'000 $'000
e BT T BT T
Surplus / (deficit) for the year rEERE | (BE) 90,631 (54,643)
Adjustments for: FEIER
- Depreciation -IE 4 89,333 83,471
- Loss on disposal of fixed assets - HEETEEEEE 318 8
- Net investment gain from - BARBEFAERS
financial assets at fair value SRBEERNFIRE R
through profit or loss 21 (1,145) (1,179)
- Dividend gain - IR B 21 (389) (305)
- Grants transferred from - EREEEARESH
deferred capital funds HE® 16 (88,356) (82,617)
- Interest income - FBUA 21 (8,426) (12,767)
- Finance cost - BAIS RS 26 127 157
- Exchange differences -ERERE 15 29
Changes in working capital: EEESHEE
- Increase in accounts receivable, - FEYER - e R
deposits and prepayments TERTEIEE N (15,689) (12,272)
- (Decrease) / Increase in provision - EERFEE Ofid) /3Em
of employee benefits (13,683) 2,246
- Decrease in accounts payable - R BRER I JE ST R IE R 2>
and accruals (108) (17,156)
- (Decrease) / Increase in deferred -REWA CRtA) /380
income (14,313) 3,379
Cash generated from / EEEE / (A Re
(used in) operations 38,315 (91,649)
(b) In the cash flow statement, the disposal of fixed assets is analysed () T“HEREEX LEETEEINTW

as follows:

T

Group A%

Net book amount
Loss on the disposal

Proceeds from the disposal

Note
Bt
BRTENHE 4
HEEE
i FT1S 7RI
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)
29 Capital commitments 29 EXEE
As at 30 June 2011, the Group and Institute had capital commitments on R-Z——FRA=1H  AEELRHEEHE
leasehold improvements, furniture and fixtures as follows: WEEE RAMETEENERAENT
Group and Institute Z<&E B
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
BT BT
Contracted but not provided for BRABREE 21,107 29,445
Authorised but not contracted for BEREEREL 3,013 3,013
24,120 32,458
30 Commitments under operating leases 30 KREHEMEE
(@) Asat30June 2011, the Group and the Institute leased a property F) R=T——FXA=1H  KEEEHK
under an operating lease arrangement with a term of three years. GiRE—REEEERHET —BY
¥ RE=F-
At the balance sheet dates, the Group and Institute had future REEER - ANEBE RHGIRIE—IBY %
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable AT REE S EHE 2 AR EEAER
operating leases in respect of a property as follows: SHAEN T
Group and Institute Z<&E B R
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
BT BT
Within one year —FR 7,106 7,020
Operating lease charges for the year ANEELLSHETH 9,446 9,140
(b) As at 30 June 2011, the Group and Institute had future aggregate () RZZE—FA=TH xEBEEH
minimum lease receipts under operating leases in respect of PR EYZE 2 TAIHGHEEHE
rental properties as follows: RREEBEEYGRBTENT ¢
Group and Institute Z<&@E &Pz
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
BETT BT T
Within one year —FRN 215 294
After one year but no later than FEEFRAFA
five years - 22
215 316
The leases typically run for a period based on the terms on the employment HEMNHEA—RBEEBELOERME - K
contracts. Lease are usually reviewed every year to reflect the market FEBAPOFENEE  URMMSHES -
rentals.

BEBHEER2010/201 1B ®/E



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M AT

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION FHE#E 2k
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

31 Related-party transactions 31 BHMAERB
Other than those disclosed in Notes 9(c)and 25(b) to the consolidated TiHREMBHMERMEI(A) &2 ( )BT 5 28
financial statements, the Institute undertook the following significant 57\\ CHHERFANR R ERE BRETTIIE
transactions with the HKIEd SCPE during the year: RS »
(@) Commitment under operating leases (F) E2HERRE
Included in Note 30(a), certain operating lease rentals for office FEHFES0 (F) - #HEmmohE
premises of the Institute will be absorbed by the HKIEd SCPE for BEERS K mBENE 2R ERE
its use as follows: RifmAENT
Group and Institute 4<&EE MKz
2011 2010
$’000 $'000
B¥ETT BB
Within one year —FRN 2,012 1,993
(b) Other transactions () Hixs

Group and Institute Z<&@E R

2011 2010
Note $’000 $'000
BifaE BET T BB T
Office expenses under FIA [#E KRl A
“Learning and research” MAERZ
- Service fee to printing unit - BTEIRIEM A RIS E (a) (F) - (36)
Service and management fee income RIS K EIE B U A
- Staff cost recharged for human - BRANEBERZEWE
resources support BB (b) (2) 424 1,169
- Outsourced teaching fee income - AMNHEZEE U A K
and administrative fee income THRERA (c) (@) 5,254 4,436
Rental income iz ON (d) (T) 5,387 5,154
Note : Fat :
(a) Service fee to printing unit was charged in accordance with the terms mutually () #a T R s 69 R 75 B T AR IR A e B F AR B B 7 iy
agreed by the Institute and HKIEd SCPE. A AR -
(b) Staff cost was recharged at actual cost of seconded staff. (Z)  ERAAZAERE R R AN o
(c) Outsourced teaching fee income was charged by the Institute in accordance with (A) SPNAIE) BB BN TR 1% 8 77 175 3% 4 155K e 2B AER o 91
the terms mutually agreed by both parties. Outsourced administrative fee income HEITTIR B A SR EE L B BB AT E -
was charged at actual cost incurred.
(d) Rental income was charged in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by both (T) T WA TIRIZE T e iR
parties.
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32.

33.

34.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures in relation to the classification of exchange
gain arising from investments and deposits denominated in foreign
currencies, administrative costs incurred for student exchange activities
and costs for staff engaged in management of sports facilities have been
reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

As detailed in note 2.3 to the financial statements, the Group has
changed its accounting policy on classification of term loans that contain
a repayment on demand clause. Accordingly, the Groups’ borrowings
have been reclassified from non-current liabilities to current liabilities.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The Group’s fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets after taking into account their
estimated residual value. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives
and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the
amount of depreication expense to be recorded during any reporting
period. The useful lives and residual values are based on management’s
historical experience with similar assets and, where applicable, taking
into account anticipated equipment upgrade and replacement. The
depreciation charge for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 30 June 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2011 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them may result in new or amended disclosures, it is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations

and financial position.

BB BE)

32

33

34
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S8l

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #855 - FiE f%ﬁb(/ﬁ‘ ’r*ﬁzﬁﬁ'i'f_z )

Report of the Trustee E5EARE

For the year ended 30 June 2011 HZ—_ZT——F A=+t HIFE

The Trustee presents its annual report and the financial
statements of The Hong Kong Institute of Education
Superannuation Scheme (“the Scheme”) for the year ended
30 June 2011.

Introduction

The Scheme was established on 1 September 1995 to provide benefits on
retirement, death, ill-health and termination of employment to its Scheme
Members. It was registered under the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (“ORS0O”) on 12 December 1995.

There were 393 (2010: 411) Scheme Members at the end of June 2011. Total
contributions paid and payable into the Scheme during the year ended 30 June
2011 amounted to HK$40 million (2010: HK$40 million). Of this, Scheme
Members and the Hong Kong Institute of Education contributed at the rate of
5% and 15% of the Scheme Members’ basic salaries respectively.

The assets of the Scheme are invested in Sub-Funds of the RCM Choice Fund
including the RCM Balanced Fund (Ordinary Class - A), RCM Capital Stable
Fund (Ordinary Class - A), RCM Growth Fund (Ordinary Class - A), RCM Stable
Growth Fund (Ordinary Class - A), RCM HK$ Liquidity Fund (Ordinary Class),
RCM Absolute Return Fund (Ordinary Class - A), RCM Asian Fund (Ordinary
Class - A) and RCM Hong Kong Fund (Ordinary Class - A). The assets of the
Scheme were also invested in Sub-Funds of the Fidelity Advantage Portfolio
Fund (Ordinary Units) including Balanced Fund, Capital Stable Fund, Growth
Fund, Stable Growth Fund, US Dollar Money Fund, Hong Kong Bond Fund,
Hong Kong Equity Fund, Asian Pacific Equity Fund, Global Equity Fund, HK$
Money Fund and World Bond Fund. Fidelity Advantage Portfolio Fund is a unit
trust established as an umbrella fund managed by FIL Investment Management
Limited. The net asset value of the Scheme as at 30 June 2011 was HK$482
million (2010: HK$403 million).
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Report of the Trustee

BEREARSE
THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME HFA# B ER A AESTE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)
Trustee fBrEA
HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, the trustee, is responsible for FEREANELEEETRE (M) BRAFTAEERHE
the administration and investment policy of the Scheme. MERRIREBE
Membership RE

Membership of the Scheme is a condition of employment for all employees RR—HWNEFNA—BRUEBRAESEHERM
hired on superannuable terms on or after 1 September 1995 who have not REEEE_ZZTE+ - A2 TRESF WM
elected to join the MPF Scheme subsequent to December 2000. HREE - HAMARGE -

Membership of the Scheme is optional for employees who transferred to the ZERE-NNAAFNA—BRARBAE B EBH

Institute from the Civil Service subject to the Pensions (Special Provisions) (The M CGRIK (FRNER) (BBHE Lbt) K61 REEH
Hong Kong Institute of Education) Ordinance (“Pension (Special) Ordinance”) EE - RIMARGTEEEEFEERE - IERBRIERR

on or after 1 September 1995. Only those who opted for the Frozen Pension HEIRRESFTEE - AR AARTEIKE -

Scheme would be eligible to become members of the Scheme.

An analysis of the number of Scheme Members is as follows: AR A5t 81 B A DT -
Active members at beginning of the year FERRIARRK S 411
New member joining FINARBK & 4
Members leaving prior to retirement TERIRRIBEFR ST BIF K B (18)
Retired members BRKREIKE (4)
Active members at end of the year FEREROKE 393
Officers and advisors FEAKERM
Employer : The Hong Kong Institute of Education ’E: BEHE R
Trustee : HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited EEPNE ELHIBEERY (M) ARAF
Scheme administrator : ~ HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited AEIEEA . ESREBEERBEMNBRAR
Auditors : KPMG IZ AT EERETMEBA
Certified Public Accountants LA
Enquiries : Any enquiry regarding the Scheme should be ST BRI MNESR  FHE -

addressed to:

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited TELEB TR (M) BRAR
No. 1 Queen’s Road, Central G
Hong Kong EREREF15E

For and on behalf of the Trustee, REEFTA

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited EERBETEREGEMNERAR

Hong Kong, 24 October 2011 &% ZE——F+tA=Z+mWmA
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BURHMBRES

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME F#E# B Zk ATES a2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

Independent Auditor’'s Report B & EEmREE

To the Trustee of The Hong Kong Institute of Education

Superannuation Scheme (“the Scheme”)

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme set out on pages 7
to 24, which comprise the statement of net assets available for benefits as
at 30 June 2011, and the statement of changes in net assets available for
benefits and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Trustee’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Trustee of the Scheme is responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the terms of the Trust Deed and the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance and for such internal control as the Trustee
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion based on our audit, on
those financial statements and to report our opinion solely to you, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of retirement schemes”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Scheme’s preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Scheme’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the Trustee, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BUZEMBES

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME HFA# B ER A AESTE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)

Independent Auditor’'s Report & & &ifmsh s E

To the Trustee of The Hong Kong Institute of Education BB G2 A2t #® ( [Kat#] )

Superannuation Scheme (“the Scheme”)(continued) 157 ()

Auditor’s responsibility (continued) BREMNEEE)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and BMAEE BRMESHEZRERZRENEE A
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. B EZE L REER -

Opinion 2R

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the BMRR  ZEVBRECBE (FAMBREE
disposition of the assets and liabilities of the Scheme as at 30 June 2011 Al EEMAFHRMAGTER -_T——F A=+
and of its financial transactions and cash flows for the year then ended in FEEMABERRUREREZ R LFENTHER

accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been FMBLRE  WERRETZHNGERLZB/RE -

properly prepared in accordance with the terms of the Trust Deed.

KPMG EEHRSAIEEET
Certified Public Accountants HMESEA

8th Floor, Prince’s Building BEPIR

10 Chater Road HEFTE105%

Central, Hong Kong RNFARE8HE

24 October 2011 —T—F+A=+mH
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Compliance Report
BURHMERRESE

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME &A# A £

e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

Compliance Report By ZEEMaRRE

By the independent auditor to the Trustee of The Hong Kong

Institute of Education Superannuation Scheme (the “Scheme”)

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme for the year ended
30 June 2011 in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing and with
reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of retirement schemes” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and have
issued an unqualified auditor’s report thereon today.

Pursuant to section 20 of the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (“ORS0Q"), we are required to report whether the Scheme complied
with certain requirements of the ORSO.

Respective responsibilities of the Trustee and auditor

The ORSO requires the Trustee to ensure that:

(a) proper accounts and records are kept as regards all assets, liabilities and
financial transactions of the Scheme;

(b) contributions are made in accordance with the terms of the Scheme;

(c) the assets of the Scheme are not subject to any assignment, charge,
pledge or other encumbrance except for those specified in section 20(3)
(b)(iii) of the ORSO; and

(d) the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO are complied with.

It is our responsibility to report solely to you on the Scheme’s compliance with
the above requirements based on the results of the procedures performed by us
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of conclusion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance engagements other than audits
or reviews of historical financial information” and with reference to Practice
Note 860.1 “The audit of retirement schemes” issued by the HKICPA. We
have performed such procedures as we considered necessary for the purpose of
reporting on the Scheme’s compliance with the above requirements.
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Compliance Report
BUZEMERREE

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME HFA# B ER A AESTE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)

Compliance Report B EENSHRRES

By the independent auditor to the Trustee of The Hong

Kong Institute of Education Superannuation Scheme (the

“Scheme”) (continued)

Conclusion

Based on the foregoing, in our opinion:

(a)

KPMG

proper accounts and records have been kept during the year ended 30
June 2011 as regards all assets, liabilities and financial transactions of the
Scheme during the year ended 30 June 2011;

contributions have been made in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme during the year ended 30 June 2011 and there was no shortfall
between the assets and the aggregate vested liability of the Scheme as at
30 June 2011;

at 30 June 2011, the assets of the Scheme were not subject to any
assignment, charge, pledge or other encumbrance except for those
specified in section 20(3)(b)(iii) of the ORSO; and

at 31 December 2010, 31 March 2011 and 30 June 2011, the
requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO have been complied with.

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

24 October 2011
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Statement of Net Assets Available for Benefits
AHENEEFER

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME F#E# B Zk ATES a2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

Statement of Net Assets Available for Benefits

A EENEEFER

At 30 June 2011 —ZE——FXA=+H

Financial assets at fair value BRAREBETABZHN
through profit or loss SREE

Current assets REEE
Accounts and other receivables FEUBR TR B EL A FE UK
Cash at banks SRITTIFR

Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts and benefits payable FER R AR A

Net current liabilities REEEFE

Net assets available for benefits sTEIR B G AR R
attributable to Scheme Members EEFE

For and on behalf of the Trustee,
HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited

24 October 2011

The notes on pages 71 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
Et+t1+—ENTHEHNEBAGE BRI —E1 -
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Note
Hifat

4(a)(iii)

2011 2010

HK$ HK$

bl B

491,967,745 407,248,015

- 561,856

2,437,349 2,715,390

2,437,349 3,277,246

12,258,135 7,386,004

(9,820,786) (4,108,758)

482,146,959 403,139,257
REEFA

EERBELRE (M) ARAR

—T——F+A=+mH



Statement of Changes in Net Assets Available for Benefits

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME HFA# B ER A AESTE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)

AHENEEFELDR

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Available for Benefits

A EENEEFHEZBR

For the year ended 30 June 2011
Investment return

Net realised gain on disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
Net unrealised gain on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
Management fee rebate income
Other income

Expenses

Trustee and custodian fees
Administration fee

Accounting and professional fees
Miscellaneous expenses
Unrealised exchange loss

Net income for the year
Contributions received and receivable
Benefits paid and payable

Net increase in net assets
available for benefits

Net assets available as at 1 July

Net assets available as at 30 June

Note
Bt

BE-2——F~A=1THLEE
REE R

HERARBEMABEZNSE
BENDEI MR FR

BARBEFAERSENEHEED
RER U EF R

EEEREMEA

HAdWA

i 6
SHEARIEARR
THEA
B RIRBBE
AERE
RETE

REEFRA
B FE 5K 7
B REMEF

AR EREE R E R IFE

REtA-—BWAHEERE
RANA=THNAHEERE

The notes on pages 71 to 85 form part of these financial statements.

E+—EN+HENHEE NG EBREE—E7 -

2011 2010

HK$ HK$

i B
12,012,615 7,941,923
64,729,897 13,842,390
483,080 419,720
70,584 =
77,296,176 22,204,033
(1,146,013) (1,192,281)
(89,250) (74,750)

= (149,475)

(2,055) =
(8,576) (10,319)
(1,245,894) (1,426,825)
76,050,282 20,777,208
39,684,218 40,272,007
(36,726,798) (24,674,296)
79,007,702 36,374,919
403,139,257 366,764,338
482,146,959 403,139,257
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Cash Flow Statement
RBeRER

THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME F#E# B Zk ATES a2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

Cash Flow Statement
WERER
e

2011 2010
HK$ HK$
it d ot
For the year ended 30 June 2011 BE-_Z——FXA=1tHLEE
Operating activities EEER
Net income for the year AREEFWA 76,050,282 20,777,208
Adjustments for: FEIFE
- Net realised gain on disposal of financial - HERARBEFABED
assets at fair value through profit or loss CREEND RN TR (12,012,615) (7,941,923)
- Net unrealised gain on financial - BRARBEFABEHNSHEERN
assets at fair value through profit or loss RERWEFRE (64,729,897) (13,842,390)
- Unrealised exchange loss - ARERESEBE 8,576 10,319
Cash used in operations EEFMARS (683,654) (996,786)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts and FERTEESR R ABFIE N / (R
benefits payable 14,613 (2,006,138)
Contributions received B 39,684,218 40,272,007
Benefits paid BEF (13,004,828) (9,251,587)
Net cash generated from operating activities EEERELENESEE 26,010,349 28,017,496
Investing activities REEK
Purchase of financial assets at fair value AR AR BEABZEL
through profit or loss SRVEE (64,276,573) (77,153,256)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets HERARBEFABZN
at fair value through profit or loss CREEMFTSRIE 37,988,183 49,568,502
Net cash used in investing activities REEBFTANRSTHE (26,288,390) (27,584,754)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash ReRRSEEY (B2 / EnFE
and cash equivalents (278,041) 432,742
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July REtA—BHNRERESEZEY 2,715,390 2,282,648
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June RAA=+THNEERELSEEY 2,437,349 2,715,390

Cash and cash equivalents represents cash at banks.

The notes on pages 71 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
Ft1+—EN+HEHNEBAGEHBFRERN—5517 -
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME &HE# B Zr AL E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)

Notes to the Financial Statements
B KM

Notes to the financial statements Bt#&sR&RMIzE

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Description of the Scheme

Constitution of the Scheme

The operation of The Hong Kong Institute of Education Superannuation
Scheme (“the Scheme”) is governed by the Trust Deed dated 19 October
1995. The Scheme was registered under section 18 of the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORS0”) on 12 December
1995.

With the implementation of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF")
Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000 in Hong Kong. The Hong
Kong Institute of Education (“the Institute”) also participates in a master
trust MPF scheme operated by an independent service provider (“the
MPF Scheme”). As the Scheme is an MPF-exempted recognised ORSO
scheme, all the employees who joined the Institute before 1 December
2000 on superannuable terms were given the option to elect between the
Scheme and the MPF Scheme.

Principal employer

The principal employer of the Scheme is The Hong Kong Institute of
Education.

Parties to the Scheme

In addition to the members, HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia)
Limited is the trustee, custodian and administrator of the Scheme.

Scheme termination

The Scheme may be terminated by the Institute by giving 1 month’s prior
notice in writing to the Trustee of the Scheme, who should then notify
members that the Scheme would be terminated as soon as practicable.

Membership

An analysis of the number of members of the Scheme is as follows:

(%)

ERHAESRAES ([FFE]) WEER
HER—ANTFETATHBRIIETRY
FRER - AHBR—AAAF+=—A+=AR
BEEL (BERREEIEDD  ( CRIRETEIE
Bl) ) EB1815EM o

BEE CatitRES ([wES] ) &)
NoZZTET_A-HEBBEHR  &BH
BER ([#k)) tRN2EAERBH
[ERPTEEMBIESERETHE ([BED
Hall ) o BRAF SR ERERGIEATE
S IEERARNRIRNAKAE  £-FF
ZE+ - A-RARAESGTERNAEE
8 - PRSI BIRaTES T E -

N

TEREE
AAEMETEREIARTEHERE

Rt BINB RS

Br TETEIK B UASN - ELBRBETRSE (B
M) BRARZRAEFTEINETA  EEARE
BA-

EJTa g

e r & — B AR AR BETFALEE L R
BB ARG EIBA - MAFEEEA
[ERS B BE B R ITHRENERBMET K E
REBH TR

K&
AEAEREBENOWTAT -

2011 2010

S -5

At the beginning of the year FH 411 415
Add: New members I R E 4 12
Less: Withdrawals B RN ERAK B (18) (11)
Retirements RIREKE 4) (5)

At the end of the year FHR 411 411
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME &A# A £

e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 5B #895) + FTB < 8B B AENT)

(f)

(@

(b)

Description of the Scheme (continued)

Funding policy

The Scheme is a defined contribution scheme. Members of the Scheme
(“Scheme Members”) and the Institute contribute 5% and 15% of the
Scheme Members’ basic monthly salary respectively to the Scheme.
Benefits are paid to the Scheme Members on their retirement or on
leaving employment subject to certain conditions as stipulated in the
Trust Deed.

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation of
financial statements

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), a collective term
that includes all applicable individual HKFRS, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
ORSO. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Scheme is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued new and revised HKFRS that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Scheme. The adoption of the new
and revised HKFRSs has no significant impact to the financial statements
of the Scheme for the years ended 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2011.

The Scheme has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period (note 12).

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is historical cost except that investments are stated at
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out below. The
net assets of the Scheme, as disclosed on the statement of net assets
available for benefits, are shown before the deduction of any obligations
to pay retirement benefits in the future. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Scheme’s financial
statements is set out in note 3.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)

(@)

(b)

(c)

Significant accounting policies

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Scheme classified its investments in unit trusts as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.

Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Scheme commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in
the statement of changes in net assets available for benefits. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Changes in the fair value are included in the statement of changes
in net assets available for benefits in the period in which they arise.
Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Scheme

has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Investments in unit trusts are accounted for at fair value based on quoted
bid prices.

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the Scheme will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate, unless the discounting
effect is insignificant. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the statement of changes in net assets available for
benefits. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to the statement of changes in net assets available for
benefits.

Accounts and benefits payable

Accounts and benefits payable are initially recognised at fair value and
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method, unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. They are classified as current
liabilities unless the Scheme has an unconditional right to defer settlement
or liability at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Notes to the Financial Statements
B KM
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(d)

(e)

(f)

(g

(h)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, current
deposits with banks and other short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity of acquisition.

Recognition of investment return

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are dealt with through the statement of
changes in net assets available for benefits in the period in which they
arise.

Management fee rebate income is recognised as income when it is
probable that they will be received, which is generally upon their receipt.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into the
Hong Kong dollars using the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of changes in net assets
available for benefits.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, are recognised in the statement of
changes in net assets available for benefits as part of the fair value gain or
loss.

Contributions

Contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Benefits paid and payable

Benefits paid and payable represent all benefit claims determined by the
Trustee to be valid in respect of the Scheme during the year in respect of
Scheme Members who have left the Scheme and are accounted for on
an accruals basis. No provision is made in the financial statements for
benefits that will become payable to existing members of the Scheme in
the future.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011

CTB 2 RLE R BE)

(&)

FEGIEEK (8)

RERBESEEY
RERBCEBMERERTERNETERS
TR IRITHE TR - R G = mEh1E

MWIRE - BURBEERB S REREEEDN
[F\fe TR ABEREE RD MBRENED - A
AR =ARNEIE -

REWAER

BAnBEAARENEREEN AL EEE
PAELNRERELBREAHENEEF

BEEERNEE - 750 F S AR ERF
BOE - BB PIARR -

EEEREHRATERA] W E A B AR
RABA (E—RIERT - AU R B B AR
EITHER) o

INEIBE

FRANINER HIRZ 5 HHIMNEERBE R
B o L‘M\\ﬁ%?%ﬁﬁE@Eﬁgﬁﬁéﬁiﬁfﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁ%
BHINEE RSB E B - [EX B HiE
NEEFELBRTHER -

FERMIRE (MERAAEBEFARSNESE
AES) ARHENEEFEEDRTEAR
AnBERESER -

i
PRAE HFG AR B EARR -

BN REMIEF

B R MR R ISR 4 IR A 3 B0 3T BUA
B {5 A RIERAE BIP 2 5T 1S BRI
4 S REEHEEASE - I WAL GE AR
e RE AT BIR A R B BRI B A -



THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME FH#E
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (% 57 #8551

(i)

()

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Obligations to pay retirement benefits in the future

Details of the Scheme’s obligations to pay retirement benefits in the future
are set out in note 10. No provision is made in the financial statements
for this liability except to the extent indicated in note 3(c). The terms
“aggregate vested liability” and “aggregate past service liability”, as used
in note 10, have the same meaning as defined in section 2(1) of the

ORSO. They may be broadly defined as follows:

Vested liabilities relate primarily to those benefits that would be payable if
an employee had voluntary resigned and thereby ceased to be employed
on the date of valuation.

Past service liabilities represent the aggregate of contributions paid
and payable by the employer and the Scheme Members, together with
any declared investment return on those contributions on the date of
valuation.

For the full definition of these terms, reference should be made to the
ORSO.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be
related to the Scheme if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, to control the Scheme or exercise significant influence
over the Scheme in making financial and operating policy decisions,
or has joint control over the Scheme;

(i) the Scheme and the party are subject to common control;

(ii) the party is a member of key management personnel of the Scheme
or a close family member of such an individual or is an entity under
the control, joint control or significant influence of such individual; or

(iv) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or is an
entity under the control, joint control or significant influence of such
individual.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who
may be expected to influence or be influenced by, that individual in their
dealings with the entity.

BB
BB BE)
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4 Financial instruments 4

(a) Financial risk factors (F)

The Scheme’s objective is to achieve capital growth through investing
in a selection of funds managed by RCM Asia Pacific Limited and FIL
Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited.

The Scheme is exposed to market price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
interest rate risk and foreign currency risk arising from the financial
instruments it holds. The risk management policies employed by the
Scheme to manage these risks are discussed below:

(i) Market price risk

The Scheme is subject to market price risk in relation to its
investment in units trusts for prices in the future are uncertain.
The units in the underlying fund are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss in the statement of net
assets available for benefits. The Scheme’s market price risk is
managed through (i) deliberate investment funds selection and
(i) diversification of the investment portfolio.

As at year end, the overall market price exposure is as follows:

SRITHE

HigEkREZE
FEEIMBEIEREBINEATLH RCM  Asia
Pacific Limited MEEES () BRAA
FIEBRBRES  UEHBEARIEER -

KEFEREF AT AMEAZTIHER 5
5 RPESR - FEMIMNERR o R BIFTER
RNER I ER BN RREEBRRALT

(i) M5 ERER
AABREASENERESMITHE
RERMATZE  REEEESHRN
ERREEREN - HEESHELE
AHEBNEEFERTEIBERRAR
EEFABSNESREE - AstElam
SERRBREBATHRNER: () ¥
BREZSWBENHE - & () HREA

BHDEL -

FEFER - BRMSERRBAT

2011 =—&——%
% of % of
Fair value net assets Fair value net assets
AREE HEEFE AAERE HEEFE
HK$:B % ATt HKS$# ANt
Financial assets at fair value BRARBEFABRN
through profit or loss SMEE 19,185,430 4% 15,498,820 4%
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)

4 Financial instruments (continued) 4 S®MIA (&)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued) () H¥ERBEZ (&)
(i) Market price risk (continued) (i) miSERRE (&

TRERAE-T——FR_T-TFX
A=1+H8  BuERESHE2EEE
B L/ TSR IR B G AR EIE
EFENTE - WEASTERRSER
index component within the benchmark increases/decreases by BRABEEKD EH | T#E% (=%
5% (2010: 5%), with all other variables held constant and that —TF  5%) MAAHMEHEST
B URAEREN AR EEIER

The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases
from the unit trusts’ underlying benchmark on the Scheme’s net
assets attributable to Scheme Members at 30 June 2011 and 30
June 2010. The analysis is based on the assumption that the

the fair value of the Scheme’s investment moved according to the

historical correlation with the index.

EEMEL R R -

Benchmark increase / decrease by 5%
SERELH I TER5%

Impact on net assets available for benefits attributable to Scheme Members

Hit B EEA T EBENEEFENSE

2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
Benchmark components SERIZR G HK$ &% HK$ &%
(1) RCM Choice Fund (1) RCMBEES
Balanced Fund FTSE MPF Hong Kong Index HiEES ERRTES T BIEH 3,826,116 3,116,342
FTSE AW North America Index ERILEEE
FTSE AW Europe Index ERBUMEE
FTSE Japan Index BB AR
FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan ERARIEH
ex Hong Kong Index (B - BABRIN
Citigroup World Government TEEEE R ES
Bond Index (USD hedged) FEBR (FETEF)
Citigroup World Government RS RBTES
Bond Index (USD) HHE (ETT)
MPFA Prescribed Savings Rate saHEATESTE
EIRRETARER =
Capital Stable Fund ~ FTSE MPF Hong Kong Index BEEAES EHABEESEH 258,108 179,738
FTSE AW North America Index EREEEE
FTSE AW Europe Index ERFEUMNIEE
FTSE Japan Index B BB
FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan ERTEARIEH
ex Hong Kong Index (B~ HABRRIN
Citigroup World Government TS EH ABFES
Bond Index (USD hedged) B (RTTEH)
Citigroup World Government EEEEHRBTES
Bond Index (USD) faE (ET)

MPFA Prescribed Savings Rate

NN e
EIEBRTARERNE

BEBHEER2010/201 1B ®/E
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4  Financial instruments (continued) 4 TRITH (&)
(@)  Financial risk factors (continued) (F) HBEBREE &)

0 Market price risk (continued) (i) MISERER (#)

Benchmark increase / decrease by 5%
SBEEZELH I THKR%

Impact on net assets available for benefits attributable to Scheme Members
Hit BRI HENEEFENTE

2011 2010
—E——F T -FF
Benchmark components Bt e HK$ B HK$ 7B
(1) RCM Choice Fund (continued) (1) RCMBRES (&)
Growth Fund FTSE MPF Hong Kong Index HMERES ERAES B BIEH 3,918,236 2,918,184
FTSE AW North America Index ERIEEIEE
FTSE AW Europe Index = REUMIE 2
FTSE Japan Index =i B AR
FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan BRI A[RIEE
ex Hong Kong Index (A7 - BBBRIN
Citigroup World Government TEHESE B R AT ES
Bond Index (USD hedged) B2 (RTTEH)
Citigroup World Government eSS EH RBTES
Bond Index (USD) a8 (Z5T)
MPFA Prescribed Savings Rate BHIEATESETE
ERRFIARERNE
Stable Growth Fund ~ FTSE MPF Hong Kong Index BEERES SERHAESESEH 636,252 479,263
FTSE AW North America Index EhdLEEE
FTSE AW Europe Index E R RUMIEE
FTSE Japan Index B B A5
FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan BRI ARIE
ex Hong Kong Index (B - BHABRIN
Citigroup World Government TEEEEE R ES
Bond Index (USD hedged) B8 (ETTEDR)
Citigroup World Government TS EHEARTES
Bond Index (USD) & (=7T)
MPFA Prescribed Savings Rate N EREE
S EIHEEEE TS
Absolute Return Fund ~ FTSE all world BiZEsHES BEIIKEH 18,403 10,782
Asian Fund MSCI All Country Far East ex Japan TNES MSCIfi 8 BRRRIEE
Index (USD) (BARBRSIN) (=7T) 117,914 -
Hong Kong Fund FTSE MPF Hong Kong Index BEES BB BB 32,450 -

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011
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4
(@)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Market price risk (continued)

Balanced Fund

Capital Stable Fund

Growth Fund

Stable Growth Fund

Hong Kong
Bond Fund

Hong Kong
Equity Fund

Asia Pacific
Equity Fund

Global Equity Fund

Benchmark components

(2) Fidelity Advantage Portfolio Fund

FTSE AW North America Index

FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan
ex Hong Kong Index

FTSE AW Europe Index

FTSE MPF Hong Kong Index

FTSE AW Japan Index

Citigroup World Government
Bond Index

FTSE AW North America Index

FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan
ex Hong Kong Index

FTSE AW Europe Index

FTSE MPF Hong Kong Index

FTSE AW Japan Index

Citigroup World Government
Bond Index

FTSE AW North America Index

FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan
ex Hong Kong Index

FTSE AW Europe Index

FTSE MPF Hong Kong Index

FTSE AW Japan Index

Citigroup World Government
Bond Index

FTSE AW North America Index

FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan
ex Hong Kong Index

FTSE AW Europe Index

FTSE MPF Hong Kong Index

FTSE AW Japan Index

Citigroup World Government
Bond Index

HSBC Bond (HKD)

FTSE MPF Hong Kong Index

FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan
ex Hong Kong Index

FTSE AW North America Index

FTSE AW Asia Pacific ex Japan
ex Hong Kong Index

FTSE AW Europe Index

FTSE MPF Hong Kong Index

FTSE AW Japan Index

Notes to the Financial Statements
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4 e@MT A (&)
(F) HBEBREE &)

()

mSERER (&

Benchmark increase / decrease by 5%

SEEREH | TRE%

Impact on net assets available for benefits attributable to Scheme Members
HEEIR BB HENEEFENTE

DEHRERD

(2) EEEUREMAGES

BEES

BRES

FEEERES

ERESFED

TR EED

DABRRES

REBREES

ClEEIES

B EAEES
(BA - FHERRIN

= BN IR

ERRRSAEEH

= AR

TEMSR Bt REAF
[EExi=t /o

B
ERTAREE
(A7 - BB
BB R
(L Bt
B AR
TR B R B
548
B
BHTARIEH
(B - FBRIN
BB B
BERES TR
B AAKEE
TEMR B R B
FA
B
EHTAREH
(A7 - BRI
BB B
BHRES TSR
EH A
TR R B
A

[ELES (BE)

ERRESEEER

B ARER
(AZ - FHERRIN

LSS
EH T A

(B - BBHIN
BN
EHERS TSN
BH B A

2011 2010
—g——F —2-%F
HKS$ 8%  HK$ 5%
4,989,748 4,576,395
527,770 385,560
3,839,510 3,153,217
704,810 679,339
6,161 .
165,102 .
109,404 :
35,446 -
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4 Financial instruments (continued) 4 2RI A (&)
(a) Financial risk factors ( continued) (F) HEEBEZR &)
(ii) Credit risk (i) EERE
The Scheme is potentially subject to concentration of credit risks REtE G AR EER e ST AR A
which consist principally of balances with investment managers FE  EIEEREREENERT
and bank balances. Their credit risk is limited because the RITEN - AR AL BT ERERR
counterparties are considered by management to be reputable RELMEERFNMBHE  Bite
and creditworthy financial institutions. As such, the credit risk is MHEERRER : &t - EERBRE
considered minimal. RETK o
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the HEERRNESREREREERE
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet. RANERTHEENRALE -
(iif) Liquidity risk (iif) mEE 2R

AREHEIE S E BRI PAINOIR £ M 2 E2ER
RERR o AETBIEBHEAR D EER
BINA IR BT M Al BRS B430 A1
BIEA L KMERERARR

The Scheme is exposed to unexpected withdrawal of cash
benefits. It manages the risk by investing the majority of its
assets in investments that are traded in active markets and can

be readily liquidated.

TERARFENEREEREERER
B =S KFIH B ROR R ER A AERE 2
HERINHT - U THENBERG LR
BIRBEIRE - ANRERHFZEEN -
BAE1218 A MBI A RS R E R
EE -

The table below analyses the Scheme’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying

balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

2011 2010
HK$ HK$
B ki
Less than 1 year DPR—F

Accounts payable FERTARR 1,730,538 1,773,782

Entitlement payables to bankrupt ENERES / BEREY
members/resigned members T EIRK B MBS FIE 9,787,675 4,860,913

Minimum benefits payable to FEfTRiE M RIEF =
Mandatory Provident Fund 636,000 662,000
Other payables H A RIS IR 103,922 89,309
12,258,135 7,386,004

Net assets available for benefits FHEIK B G P ftAE R
attributable to Scheme Members EEFE 482,146,959 403,139,257
494,405,094 410,525,261

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011
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4
(@)

(b)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk factors ( continued)

(iv)

(v)

Interest rate risk

The majority of the Scheme’s financial assets and liabilities are
non-interest bearing; as a result, the Scheme is not subject
to significant risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of
market interest rates. Accordingly, in the opinion of the Trustee,
the changes in market interest rates do not have a significant
impact on the Scheme’s income and operating cash flows and no
sensitivity analysis is performed.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises where future commercial transactions
and recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the Scheme’s functional currency. The
Scheme holds assets primarily in both Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars. As Hong Kong dollars is pegged to United
States dollars under the Linked Exchange Rate System, the foreign
exchange exposure between the United States dollars and Hong
Kong dollars is therefore limited. In the opinion of the Trustee,
the Scheme will not be exposed to significant exchange rate risk
exposure and no sensitivity analysis is performed accordingly.

Scheme assets risk management

The Scheme’s objectives when managing assets are to safeguard the

quality of the Scheme’s assets in terms of liquidity, sufficiency and

adequacy so as to meet the benefits of the Scheme Members.

In order to achieve its objectives, the Scheme’s investments are properly

managed by professional investment managers under the close review by

the Institute.
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(c)

(d)

Financial instruments (continued)

Fair value information

The amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures, require
disclosures relating to fair value measurements of financial instruments
across three levels of a “fair value hierarchy”. The fair value of each
financial instrument is categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level
of input that is significant to that fair value measurement. The levels are

defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial instruments

Level 2: fair value measured using quoted prices in active markets for
similar financial instruments, or using valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable market
data

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation techniques in
which any significant input is not based on observable market data

At 30 June 2011, the financial instruments of the Scheme carried at fair
value were quoted unit trusts of $491,967,745 (2010: $407,248,015).
These instruments fall into Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy described
above.

During the year, there were no transfers among instruments in Level 1,
Level 2 and Level 3.

Fair value estimation

All financial instruments were carried at amounts not materially different
from their fair values as at 30 June 2011 and 2010. Investments in unit
trusts are fair valued based on quoted bid prices.

The Hong Kong Institute of Education Financial Report 2010/2011
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THE HONG KONG INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SUPERANNUATION SCHEME HFA# B ER A AESTE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated) (5 SB# 85 + FrBA & BB AELT)
5  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5 RAARBEFARSNERMEE
2011 2010
HK$ HK$
el ookt
RCM Choice Fund: RCMBRES :
RCM Balanced Fund (Ordinary Class A) HEES (@A) 107,503,415 91,906,885
RCM Capital Stable Fund (Ordinary Class A) BEEAES (@A) 16,788,636 12,959,635
RCM Growth Fund (Ordinary Class A) BEES (EBA 84,354,293 63,153,776
RCM Stable Growth Fund (Ordinary Class A) BEEEES (T8 A) 23,834,276 19,652,286
RCM HK$ Liquidity Fund (Ordinary Class A) BITRBES (il A) 25,721,024 25,737,239
RCM Absolute Return Fund (Ordinary Class A) BiREEHES (Ll A) 3,249,668 1,934,143
RCM Asian Fund (Ordinary Class A) RCM 25 2,731,918 -
RCM Hong Kong Fund (Ordinary Class A) RCM HEES 720,704 -
Fidelity Advantage Portfolio Fund: EEEUREHEHSES
Balanced Fund HEES 99,794,962 89,733,243
Capital Stable Fund BEREBEES 10,149,417 7,344,001
Growth Fund BEEES 78,357,354 63,064,335
Stable Growth Fund FREERES 13,819,802 13,064,210
US Dollar Money Fund ETEBES 18,195,631 18,698,262
Global Equity Fund REREES 730,837 -
Hong Kong Bond Fund BEREFES 144,970 -
Hong Kong Equity Fund EEREES 3,439,629 -
Asia Pacific Equity Fund TAREES 2,431,209 =
Maximum exposure to credit risk FEERRNRSRE 491,967,745 407,248,015
6 Expenses 6 X
During the year, certain expenses, including audit fee, of the Scheme FARFENRLER (RFERHE) AE8
were borne by The Hong Kong Institute of Education, which will continue EBRAR  BAHERRKBESTEL
to pay for these expenses until the number of Scheme’s Members reaches B BEFBIKEMABIERIS00ARLE -
500.
The auditor’s remuneration of $50,000 (2010: $25,000) for the year has NEFHNZEMMEB%50,000t (ZZ—F
been absorbed by the employer, The Hong Kong Institute of Education. F: B¥25,0007T) BHEZEERS BhA
o
7 Contributions received and receivable 7 2 W FE K At R
2011 2010
HK$ HK$
Normal contributions from employer EEMIEB - 29,763,164 30,204,005
Normal contributions from Scheme Members FTEIRK B M EFHER 9,921,054 10,068,002
39,684,218 40,272,007

BEBHEER2010/201 1B ®/E
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10

11

(@)

Tax status of the Scheme

The Scheme is registered under the ORSO Ordinance, and is therefore
a recognised scheme for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes. The policy of
the Inland Revenue Department (“IRD"), as set out in IRD Departmental
Interpretation and Practice Notes No. 23, is that “recognised retirement
schemes and their trustees are not considered to be subject to profits tax
on their investment income”. Accordingly, no provision for Hong Kong

Profits Tax has been made in the Scheme’s financial statements.

Forfeitures

The Superannuation and MPF Schemes Management Sub-committee
has resolved to adopt the Actuary’s recommendation that the forfeited
benefits from the Scheme Members leaving the Scheme prior to reaching
full vesting be allocated to the scheme reserve. The scheme reserve
may be used to pay the scheme expense and be reallocated among the

Scheme Members of the Scheme at the direction of the Trustee.

Obligation of the Scheme to pay retirement benefits to
members in the future

The aggregate past service liability for the Scheme as at 30 June 2011
was $482,146,959 (2010: $403,139,257).

The aggregate vested liability for the Scheme as at 30 June 2011 was
$458,095,649 (2010: $377,075,350).

Related party transactions

Other than as disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements, during the
year, the following significant related party transactions are carried out
with related parties:

Transactions with the Investment Managers

The financial assets in the Scheme are managed by FIL Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited and RCM Asia Pacific Limited (the
“Investment Managers”). The Investment Managers provide investment
management services to the Scheme and receive in return of management

fees.

The Scheme also received management fee rebate from the Investment
Managers of $483,080 for the year (2010: $419,720).
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Related party transactions (continued)

Transactions with the Trustee and its fellow subsidiary

The Scheme engages HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
(the “Trustee”) to provide trustee and custodian and administrative
services for a fee of $1,146,013 (2010: $1,192,281) and $89,250
(2010: $74,750) respectively.

The Scheme also has the following transaction and balance with a fellow
subsidiary of the Trustee:
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Cash and deposits held at year end

FRFTFRE RTFH

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 30 June 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2011 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Scheme is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that while
the adoption of them may result in new or amended disclosures, it is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Scheme’s results of operations
and financial position.
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